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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business review and Industry overview

QOur Group is principally engaged in the money lending business
specialising in providing loans to property owners in Hong Kong under
the MLO. Mortgage loan business is our core business under our well-
known and highly recognised brand name “Hong Kong Finance”. \Ne
also provide personal loan products to property owners so as to diversify
ourselves in different money lending market segments and to enhance
our overall interest margin.

Mortgage loan business remained as the major source of our Group’s
revenue, contributing approximately 67.2% to our Group’s revenue
during the current year. Interest income generated from the mortgage
loan business increased by 5.9% to HK$108.2 million during the current
year. The gross mortgage loan portfolio was HK$699.6 million as at 31
March 2023 amid the subdued economic environment during the current
year. As for our personal loan business, the interest income slightly
increased by 2.7% to HK$52.7 million, contributing to about 32.8% of
our Group’s revenue for the current year. As at 31 March 2023, our
gross personal loan portfolio was HK$199.6 million.

The current financial year 2022/23 was a radical and volatile one. The
rapid surge of federal funds interest rate coping with the inflation hike
and the recent loss of general public confidence on banking financial
sectors in the United States have slumped the global stock and bond
markets which diminished the consumption demand and investment
incentive during the current financial year. The military conflict between
Russia and Ukraine persisted for more than a year bringing further
uncertainties and hurdles to the recovery of the global economy. It was
observed that the Hong Kong property market started correcting as
evidenced by the Centa-City Leading Index dropping from 179.36 in late
March 2022 to its lowest level of 156.37 in mid-December 2022 and
then rebounding to 168.27 in late March 2023, representing a year-to-
year decrease of 6.6%. Coupled with the economic uncertainties and
great challenges, we have adopted prudent and cautious approaches
such as implementing stringent credit policies, having strict control
on loan-to-value ratio, etc. which persistently supported our Group in
maintaining our loan portfolio and generating stable interest income
during the current year. We have also tried to shift the increasing cost of
funds to our customers by increasing the rates of interest charged to our
customers. We also continue to rebalance our product-mix into personal
loan products, closely monitor the quality of our loan portfolio in terms
of customers’ creditability and repayment ability, and recall loans from
customers who have high potential default risks.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Financial review
Revenue

Our Group’s interest income from our money lending business increased
by HK$7.5 million or 4.9% from HK$153.5 million for the last year to
HK$161.0 million for the current year, and such increase was mainly
derived from the growth in our interest income from our mortgage loan
business.

Interest income from our mortgage loan business increased by HK$6.0
million or 5.9% from HK$102.2 million for the last year to HK$108.2
million for the current year, whereas the interest income from our
personal loan business increased by HK$1.4 million or 2.7% from
HK$51.3 million for the last year to HK$52.7 million for the current year.

Other income

We have recorded other income of HK$3.3 million (2022: HK$1.4 million)
during the current year which mainly comprised of rental income from
our investment properties of HK$2.3 million (2022: HK$1.3 million) and
government grant of HK$1.0 million (2022: Nil).

Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of investment properties

During the current year, our Group recorded a loss of HK$8.1 million
(2022: a gain of HK$9.0 million) on the revaluation of our investment
properties, as our Group experienced correction on Hong Kong property
market during the current year as discussed above.

Provision for impairment and write-off of loans receivable, net

We have recorded a provision for impairment and write-off of loans
receivables of HK$5.8 million for the current year (2022: HK$6.5 million).
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Below is the breakdown of provision for impairment and write-off of loans
receivable incurred from property mortgage loans and personal loans
during the current year and the prior year:

NTRAFER LFEMERBERRILA
ERELARKERRERERMEZ D
#r

Property mortgage loans

Personal loans

MEZRBER FAER
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March
HZ3AMALEE BZE3ASMBILEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20224 20234 20224
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT BEER BEAT
Provision for/(reversal of) [EW B SR ERAE,/ (B m)
impairment on loans
receivables 2.7 (1.4 24 1.9
Write-off of loans receivable JE W B SR 5 = 5.2 0.7 0.8
2.7 3.8 3.1 2.7
Administrative expenses ITH RIS

We have incurred administrative expenses of HK$57.2 million for
the current year (2022: HK$53.1 million), which mainly comprised of
employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing expenses, legal
and professorial fees, depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and other miscellaneous expenses. The increase in the administration
expenses by HK$4.1 million or 7.7% was mainly due to the increase in
our headcounts and the salary adjustments to employees which pushed
up our employee benefit expenses during the current year. We have also
increased our spending on advertising and marketing in order to promote
our money lending business and to maintain our market shares.

Finance costs

We have incurred finance costs of HK$20.9 million for the current year
(2022: HK$21.1 million), which mainly comprised of interest on interest
bearing bank, and on amount due to a fellow subsidiary. It is our Group’s
policy to prioritise the utilisation of our available facilities which offer the
lowest finance cost to our Group.

Net interest margin

The net interest margin of our money lending business was increased to
15.4% for the current year (2022: 14.9%). Our product-mix to personal
loan products for property owners helped for maintaining the overall net
interest margin at a relatively higher level.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, our profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of our Company achieved HK$58.9 million for
the current year as compared to HK$70.6 million for the last year,
representing a decrease of 16.6%. The above profit included fair value
losses on revaluation of investment properties of HK$8.1 million for the
current year (2022: a gain of HK$9.0 million) which were non-operating
in nature. Should these fair value adjustments of investment properties
be excluded in both current and last financial years, for comparison and
information purposes only, the profit and total comprehensive income
for the current year would be HK$67.0 million (2022: HK$61.6 million),
representing an increase of 8.8%.

LIQUIDITY AND SOURCES OF FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

During the current year, our Group’s operations and capital requirements
were financed principally through retained earnings, advances from
our fellow subsidiary, Tin Ching Industrial, as well as banks and other
borrowings. Based on our current and anticipated levels of operations,
barring unforeseeable market conditions, our future operations and
capital requirements will be financed through loans from banks or other
financial institutions that are independent third parties, retained earnings
and our share capital. We had no significant commitments for capital
expenditure as at 31 March 2023.

Our Group recorded net current assets of HK$263.4 million as at 31
March 2023 (2022: HK$244.7 million).

As at 31 March 2023, cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$29.9
million (2022: HK$24.9 million); amount due to a fellow subsidiary
amounted to HK$96.5 million (2022: HK$109.7 million); and interest
bearing bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$230.1 million (2022:
HK$293.8 million). During the current year, the bonds have been fully
repaid and settled (2022: HK$22.9 million).

During the current year, all interest bearing bank borrowings were
repayable on demand and were secured by our Group’s investment
properties, land and buildings, certain properties mortgaged to our
subsidiary, certain loans and interest receivables, and a corporate
guarantee of our Company. The amount due to a fellow subsidiary was
unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 6.6% per annum and repayable
on demand.

During the current year, none of our banking facilities were subject to
any covenants relating to financial ratio requirements or any material
covenants that restrict our Group to undertake additional debt or equity
financing. As at 31 March 2023, our unutilised banking facilities and
other unutilised facility available to our Group for drawdown amounted
to HK$238.5 million and HK$103.5 million, respectively. It is our Group’s
policy to prioritise the utilisation of our available facilities which offer the
lowest finance cost to our Group.
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table sets forth the key financial ratios of our Group during
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 respectively:

FEBKL R
TRETANEE S BIFE E 20234 K& 2022F 3
AS1BILFEZEEHHL R

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Current ratio MENLL & O 1.78 1.56
Gearing ratio @ BERKO 0.38 0.55
For the year ended
31 March
BZ3A31IALFE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Net interest margin ratio © FEELREO 15.4% 14.9%
Return on equity ratio © fEAE R = @ 7.5% 9.6%
Interest coverage ratio © FIERBERO 4.9 timesfZ 4.5 timesf&
Notes: MIaE -
(1) Current ratio was calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as at (1) FRELREAREELEE R Z RS EER AR

the respective year-end date.

) Gearing ratio was calculated by dividing net debts (being the total interest
bearing bank and other borrowings, amount due to a fellow subsidiary and the
bonds, less cash and cash equivalents) by total equity as at the respective year-
end date.

©) Net interest margin ratio was calculated by dividing net interest income (being
the interest income net of finance costs) by the monthly average balance of loan
receivables at the respective year-end date.

(4) Return on equity ratio was calculated by dividing profit and total comprehensive
income for year attributable to owners of the Company by the total equity as at
the respective year-end date.

5) Interest coverage ratio was calculated by dividing profit before finance costs
and income tax expenses (excluding fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of
investment properties) by the finance costs for the corresponding year.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
8 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BREFTESS -

@ EBELXEREFEAEAZEBFREEGS
RITREMEREE BN -—HERMBAR
RBAREFRREE KRS EBY) RAERR
HAHER/Y -

B FEEUERREZFELERAZMNBBAFER
(BRAEHNBR B B A 2 M BN Bk DA B W B3R
B ABBTEST -

@ BAREREEASFEGEAZEATEEA
P8 4 R P 2 T MO N AR AR DA Mt
HIGH -

B MEBEXRERFEIRBERKRFAEH
AXAEM(TEREERRENEZAFEGE
18)/ W) BRARE AT ES T -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR [E & am Mo AT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Our Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
during the current year.

IMPORTANT EVENTS OCCURRED AFTER THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Our Group did not have any important events affecting our Company
and our subsidiaries since the end of the financial year ended 31 March
2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCES AND
REGULATIONS

Our Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations. In the opinion of our Directors, in addition
to the Listing Rules, the MLO and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “AMLO”) constituted a significant influence on our Group’s
money lending business during the current year.

The MLO is the principal ordinance which governs the money lending
business in Hong Kong and the AMLO governs the matters in relation to
the money laundering and terrorist financing our Group may encounter
in our money lending business. Our money lending business has been
conducted through the subsidiaries of our Company. During the current
year, we did not receive any objection from the Registrar of Money
Lenders (“Registrar”) nor the Commissioner of Police regarding the
renewal of the money lenders licence. We have also established policies
and procedures to strictly follow the Guideline on Compliance of Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements
for Licensed Money Lenders (“AML-CTF Guideline”) issued by the
Registrar for our money lending business operations so as to mitigate
the risks of money laundering and terrorist financing.

To the best of our knowledge, our Group has complied with the MLO
and AMLO in all material aspects, and that our Directors are not aware
of any matters that might come to their attention that our money lenders
licence would be suspended, terminated or would not be renewed in
foreseeable future.

iR ZEARRE ERBWERLEE
E3]

RAFEE  AEEHESATMNENRE
TEAEMNBARRBERRZERKE R
HEFIE -

PHRFEGREHRRECEESH

EEZE2023F3A31H LB FERELEER
FHREY AEBTEEGMSFEARAQNRR
BB ARMEARNEM -

8 <F 1R 5 K 353 51

AEEARLE DA EMEHEERETHEN
BOZRELER - BEERA - BRLEWARASN -
RAFEREANGH REBEH E6155(HT
BERBERRMD TESBRIEO) ([TRKER
ERMD FESBRGH ) EAEE 2 MESE
BRREATE -

BMEAGISRETERERHT 2 TR
7 - MiTERE R D FESEREIIR
REEANRERBERB B BRLE
RRBDTESEREZEEH - RFINMEZE
BIEBARBZHMBRRET - RAF
B BAYEREEREAEREERER
BEAEMEEE(ER)ZEHREREL 2
R R & o 2970 5L & 48 DB 26 75 1 E BUR
RAZFr - ABRAS B 18 i BT £ 28 0 B 15 RE R
ANBRITEXENBH DO FESEERTEN
#5351 (TAML-CTF#g5|]) - #E B E T E & =
o TESEENAR -

EHRAMAM  AEECREEKRNTEHET
MEAGHRITEAEREH D FESES
ESVTIRNTE- - A I S s R =N = i B S A
FRE A RN A R REBE - RIEHD
EEE -

EBEEEEERAT
2023%F R 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR [E & am Mo AT

BUSINESS MODEL AND LOAN PORTFOLIOS

Our Group offers two types of loans which include property mortgage
loans and personal loans.

For property mortgage loans, our Group granted secured loans to
customers and held collaterals against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties owned by these customers. All of these
collaterals were located in Hong Kong, of which more than 80% of
them were residential properties and commercial properties. The gross
property mortgage loans receivable was accounted for approximately
77.8% of the entire gross loan receivable of the Group as at 31 March
2023 (2022: 80.4%). The interest rates of the property mortgage
loans ranged from 9% to 36% (2022: 9% to 36%) which were mainly
determined with reference to the quality, type and location of the
collaterals provided by the customers, type of mortgages, loan-to-value
ratios, loan amounts, tenors, customers’ net worth, etc..

For personal loans, our Group granted loans to customers who were
mainly property owners. The gross personal loans receivable was
accounted for approximately 22.2% of the entire loan receivable of the
Group as at 31 March 2023 (2022: 19.6%). The interest rates of the
personal loans were matched and charged to customers of differing risk
levels and ranged from 12% to 44% (2022: 10% to 44%) which were
mainly determined with reference to factors such as the size of the loans,
whether the customers were the property owners with credit history and
rating meeting with the Group’s credit policies, whether customers could
provide income proof or other source of income showing their repayment
abilities.

During the current year, our customers comprised individuals and
corporations in Hong Kong and were all independent third parties
(within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), and were not
connected persons or senior management of our Group.

As at 31 March 2023, our Group had 705 (2022: 739) active accounts,
of which 667 (2022: 684) of them were individual customers and the
remaining of 38 (2022: 55) were corporate customers; and of which 341
(2022: 394) of them were property mortgage loan customers and 364
(2022: 345) of them were personal loan customers.

During the current year, our top five customers (as determined by
interest income generated) accounted for approximately 10.8% (2022:
7.6%) of our total revenue, and our single largest customer accounted
for approximately 3.2% (2022: 2.2%) of our total revenue.

As at the year end, the largest and top five customers (as determined
by loan receivable balance) of the total gross loan receivables balance
accounted for 3.1% (2022: 2.1%) and 13.5% (2022: 8.3%) respectively.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CREDIT APPROVAL PROCESSES AND CREDIT RISK
ASSESSMENT POLICIES

All information and data provided by our customers, whether they are
individual customers or corporate customers, for our loan applications
are required to undergo credit assessment and approval procedures
in accordance with respective credit risk policies of loan products as
approved by our Board and/or senior management prior to the terms of
different loan products offered to our customers.

Prior to accepting loan application from our customers, our Group must
carry out know-your-customer procedures (“KYC procedures”) to verify
the identities of our customers and assess the credit risk associated
with these customers by using documents, data and information
obtained from reliable and independent sources, such as government
and public authorities. Further, our Group must also assess the risk of
money laundering and terrorist financing associated with our customers
in accordance with our established policy and the AML-CTF Guideline.
Furthermore, our Group must verify the ownership of the properties
owned and provided by our customers as collaterals and review the
incumbrances of these properties by checking the public records from
the land register of The Land Registry.

With reference to the application information and the results from the
KYC procedures, our credit team would make recommendations to
the management of respective loan products in terms of approvability,
loan amount, interest rate and tenor. The factors mainly being taken
into account in considering the approval of mortgage loan application
included the quality, type and location of the properties provided by
customers as collaterals, type of mortgages (i.e. first mortgage or second
mortgage), loan-to-value ratios, loan amounts, tenors, customers’ net
worth, etc.. As for considering the approval of personal loan application,
in additions to the same factors as mentioned-above for the mortgage
loan products, factors being taken also included customers’ credit
history and rating revealed by independent third-party credit rating
agency, income proof (e.g. salary records, bank statements, tax
assessments, audited financial statements, etc.) and/or other source of
income showing repayment abilities of the customers.

LOAN IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Our Group has developed policies and procedures to appropriately
assess and measure the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) in accordance
with impairment requirements of HKFRS 9. Details of the ECL policy
and measurement, and the movement of provision for impairment and
written-off of loan and interest receivables are disclosed in Note 3.1(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, our Group employed 47 (2022: 43) full time
employees. The total staff costs of our Group for the current year were
HK$28.7 million (2022: HK$25.3 million).

Our Group adopts a remuneration policy covering the position, duties
and performance of our employees. The remuneration of our employees
include salary, overtime allowance, bonus and various subsidies. We
conduct performance appraisal on an annual basis.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, our land and buildings of HK$68.0 million (2022:
HK$70.0 million), our investment properties of HK$105.2 million (2022:
HK$113.3 million), certain properties mortgaged to our subsidiary with
aggregate fair values of these properties of approximately HK$104.9
million (2022: HK$94.5 million) and certain loans and interest receivables
of HK$409.3 million in aggregate (2022: Nil) were secured for our
Group’s bank borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the current year, the business activities of our Group were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Our Directors did not consider our
Group was exposed to any significant foreign exchange risks. Our Group
did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge against the volatility
associated with foreign currency transactions and other financial assets
and liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, our Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2022: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Our Group did not have any capital commitments as at 31 March 2023
(2022: Nil).
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OUTLOOK

Hong Kong, like many other cities around the world, has been greatly
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The closure of borders and
quarantine measures have caused significant disruption to nearly all
aspects of the city’s economy, from tourism to retail and real estate. It is
encouraging to observe that there have been some causes for optimism
recently. The long-awaited reopening of borders and resumption of
quarantine-free travel with other countries, including the mainland China,
is believed to have a positive impact on Hong Kong’s economy. With
the resumption of travel, the city is expected to see an influx of tourists,
which should boost the retail and hospitality industries. The lifting of
quarantine restrictions is also expected to help the city’s real estate
sector, evidenced by the property market in Hong Kong showing signs of
a mild rebound in early 2023. With the improvement in market sentiment
following the border reopening, it is expected that property prices may
rise again which would also improve and recover the demand of our
property loan products.

However, there are also risks associated with the economic recovery
in Hong Kong. One major risk is the possibility of interest rate hikes as
a result of continued monetary policy tightening in the United States
which would continue to pressure on both investment activities and the
property market in Hong Kong. Furthermore, there is the added risk of
heightened geopolitical tensions, particularly between the United States
and China, which could further destabilize the economy.

To facing ahead with the above-mentioned opportunities with challenges
and uncertainties, we will be closely monitoring the development of the
property market. By staying up-to-date on the property market trends,
we will be able to take proactive steps to adjust our strategy in response.
This could involve a wide range of measures, such as diversifying our
loan portfolio, adjusting loan terms, instantly and effectively reviewing and
tightening our credit policies, increasing the proportion of our business
with high net-worth customers, rebalancing our product-mix, especially
in our personal loan products where we shall put more focus on
personal loans with property owners. By leveraging our professionalism,
the highly recognised brand name “Hong Kong Finance” and our
profound experience in the money lending business, we are confident to
put ourselves in a more stable and solid position in the money lending
industry, and we shall prepare ourselves to produce sound and fruitful
operating and financial results again once the economy fully rebounds.

RE

BEGERRZEMMT —HEZEICOVID-19
REBREFE  BHERERREREEE
RERLTHRATEHKEAETERFE
E)HERERTE - S ABENR  &AWH
RETSAREZRA - ARMBEAZE
MANEELMEREMER(EEHER
i) 2 iR IR - BEHEEKEELLR
TR HMEWERE RHEESAEAER
EBA BREZERAEERR -#BRNE
B BB 1 EE T 35 10 2023 5 7]t B B A 38 2 B
R BUBERRRGITIEEZHSANEFEHETT
X -BEERENARRREMEEE &
HEMEEBRAEBALN  HITBRER
MERMFHEERERNFTR

R - FERAKBEEENFERR - HP —1F
TERREXBERBERZEERE  BHA
REFHA BN HEBEHBRERERD
REWEMISEREN - o - & BUa R
REEMBICCESEZE) SRR - 7]
REHE — TIRREEIRTE o

EH B EABE R T EERE - RAK
TYIRIFHEN SRR - BB THE
EmSZ&MBYE - RAKEARIEERN
HiE - AERMIEEAERY - BRIy
REZOER  flnsBEMANERES
HAEERGME - MEARUERS L WEEE
HE - BMESFETEFLPIHHLA - #HE
EmBE  BRRLAERER  RAKE
EPREINRAER - BEARMNERRE
1 ORANDREBEE MR MR RERS
THNEELR  HMAHREERBERER
REEREMAIEBELD - RATASELFE
B REEEEERZEBREERER
MR MBI 3E 48 o

EBEEEEERAT
2023%F R

13



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\_LL/\—/-\—\

TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Our Group is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of our business and our Shareholders for enabling them to evaluate
how the principles of corporate governance have been applied. The
corporate governance principles of our Company emphasize a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
Shareholders.

Our Group has adopted and complied with the Code Provisions during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board had reviewed our
Company’s corporate governance policies. The Directors will carry out a
regular review and will propose any amendment, if and when necessary,
to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

The below sets out the corporate governance principles and practices
adopted by the Group which indicate how the Group has applied
relevant principles in the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

Aligning the Group’s culture with its purpose, values and
strategy

Our board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategy,
and satisfy itself that these and the Group’s culture are aligned. All
Directors act with integrity, lead by example, and promote the desired
culture. Such culture instils and continually reinforces across our Group’s
values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

Culture and values

A healthy corporate culture set up by the Group was vital for the Group
to achieve its vision and mission towards sustainable growth. It is the
Board'’s role to foster a corporate culture with core principles to guide
the behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Group’s vision,
values and business strategies are aligned to it.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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The framework of integrity values

Integrity underpins the behaviours of the Group’s employees in working
with each other and conducting business activities with business partners.
We have human resources management policies in place to promote a
caring environment with mutual respect and inclusive atmosphere in the
workplace. Regarding business ethics, the Group’s Code of Conduct
has defined the behavioural guidelines for its employees to ensure
that the Group’s values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly are
continuously instilled and reinforced.

The framework of accountability culture

Our Group’s culture of accountability begins from the strong leadership
of the Board, with delegation of authorities to its Board Committees,
the senior management of the respective business units, to every
individual employee throughout the Group. With clear objectives and
goals set in our business plans, budgets and forecast authorised by the
Board, augmented by open communication and fair staff performance
evaluation mechanism, our management and employees are committed
to and accountable for achieving the targets for the long-term success of
the Group.

Business strategies and policies enhancement

The Board carries out ongoing comprehensive review of the Group’s
formulation of business strategies and policies, which covers the Group’s
position in the major markets and service lines, leading drivers of change
in the industry and markets, and marketing strategies to seize business
opportunities in long run.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
Whistleblowing mechanism

Our Group has established a whistleblowing policy and administrative
measures on handling staff reporting of irregularities to ensure
employees can whistle blow through proper channels under confidence
when suspected misconducts occurred or may occur which relate
to the business or other aspects, and such reports are handled and
followed- up appropriately, without risk of retaliation or revenge. Our
Group will take appropriate actions against any improprieties and, where
appropriate, report the cases to the relevant enforcement authorities.

Our Group regularly reviews the whistle-blowing mechanism, related
policies and administrative measures to ensure their effectiveness.
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Anti-corruption measures

Our Group has adopted the Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy which
provides guidance to our employees on how to recognise and deal with
bribery and corruption. Every employee has a duty to report any potential
violations of the policy to the Group through the channels set out therein.

Our Group also strives to uphold all relevant anti-bribery and corruption
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and ensures that a robust anti-
bribery and corruption control framework is implemented to strengthen
the standards of conduct of its employees. The overall anti-bribery and
corruption framework is jointly supervised by the Board, its designated
board committees and the senior management. Our Group conducts
regular anti-bribery and corruption risk assessment to evaluate the
effectiveness of the framework and ensure it is properly and adequately
managed and implemented.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE MECHANISM

Our Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board and conducted review of the
implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms on an annual
basis. The Directors are entitled to seek, at the Group’s expense,
independent professional advice reasonably necessary for discharging
their duties as Directors. The Company Secretary will make necessary
arrangements when the Directors wish to seek such independent
professional advice.

The Board authorises the management to implement the business
strategies and has formulated clear written guidelines which stipulate
the circumstances where the management should report to and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any contracts and commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will
conduct regular reviews on these authorisation and guidelines.

Our Group has received confirmation in writing of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers them
to be independent of the management and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a
variety and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business,
marketing, finance, investment and legal profession. During the year
and up to the date of this report, the composition of the Board was as
follows:
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EEN=RBUFNTES  REHREZK
bz HERMEkEsR  RES  AX 2
2R RENAREX -RFAREER
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Directors

E=x

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEERERK

Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
BRYeFa A
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam (Chairman of the Board)
RABEE(EFSFE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
B E L (T EAER)
Ms. Chan Siu Ching (appointed on 1 November 2022)
BRNE L L (FER2022F611H1H)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BYEHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (resigned on 1 November 2022)
PRIK 88 5 A (20224 11 4 1 H BFHT)

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
RiglskE

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
REIESEE

Mr. Wong Kai Man (@ppointed on 1 November 2022)
Wong Kai Man%t 4 (Z £ 2022 11 A 1H)

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and of the Group is Mr. Tse Pui To.
The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
are separate and exercised by different individuals.

During the year, the Chairman has met with all three independent non-
executive Directors without the executive Directors presence and this
was in compliance with the Code Provisions.

Member of Remuneration Committee
FNEBEEKE
Chairman of Nomination Committee

RERBEXIE

Chairman of Audit Committee (resigned
on 1 November 2022)

ERREBEXRE(R202241181H8L)

Chairman of Audit Committee (appointed
on 1 November 2022)

BEREZEEXR(ZAR2022F11H1H)

Cha|rman of Remuneration Committee
FHEEEXF

Member of Nomination Committee

REEZBEKE

Member of Audit Committee

EZLZBEKE

l\/Iember of Remuneration Committee
HMEEGKE

Member of Nomination Committee

REBEELEEEKE

Member of Audit Committee
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Our Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, requiring that the Board should contain at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
The independent non-executive Directors have dedicated to provide
our Group with professional advice with respect to the steady operation
and development of our Group. They have also exercised supervision
and coordination to safeguard the interests of our Company and our
Shareholders.

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (independent non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee) is
regarded as the appropriate person to fulfill such qualifications of having
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
to our Company their independence during the year ended 31 March
2023 in particularly in regard to the requirements under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board considers that the independent non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship that may
influence their exercise of independent judgement and are considered to
be independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong have served as
independent non-executive Directors for more than nine years and the
Nomination Committee and the Board have reviewed and assessed
their independence pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code.
Given that (a) Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
meet the independence factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and have provided written confirmation of independence to the
Company; (b) they do not have any interest in the business activities of
the Group, nor any relationships which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment; and (c) they continue to demonstrate the
attributes of independent non-executive director to be able to exercise
their independent professional judgment and draw upon their extensive
knowledge, expertise and experience and there is no evidence that
their tenure has had any impact on their independence, the Board is of
the opinion that Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
remain independent notwithstanding the length of their service. In
addition, taking into account their in-depth knowledge in the Group’s
business together with their professional knowledge and expertise
and general business acumen, the Board considers that Mr. Chu Yat
Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong should be re-elected as the
Company’s independent non-executive Directors to continue making
contributions to the Group.
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The operation of the Board

The Board’s main task is to supervise and direct the management of
our Group to operate under good corporate governance, in order to
maximise value of our Shareholders while balancing the interest of our
various stakeholders.

The Board holds meetings to monitor the performance of our Group and
to be briefed with market developments, to discuss and decide on major
corporate, strategic and operational issues, and to appraise any good
investment opportunities available.

The major duties performed by our Board are as follows:

setting our Group’s values and standards, the objectives of our
Group and responsibilities of the Board and its various committees;

establishing the strategic direction for our Group;

setting targets for and monitoring the performance of the
management of our Group;

supervising the annual and interim results of our Group;

ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective internal control
is in place to assess and manage the risk of our Group and
implementing appropriate systems to manage these risks;

overseeing the relationships between our Company and our
Shareholders, customers, the community, various government
authorities, interest groups and others who have a legitimate
interest in the responsible conduct of our Group’s business;

identifying and assessing any matters involving a conflict of interest
for a substantial Shareholder or a Director;

determining (if any and available) any material acquisitions and/or
disposals of assets, investments, capital, projects, authority levels,
major treasury policies, risk management policies and key human
resources issues; and

considering and determining issues which are the responsibilities of
the Board pursuant to the Articles of Association and the relevant
laws and regulations in force by which our Company is governed
from time to time.
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The Board is also responsible for the following corporate governance
duties:

1. developing and reviewing our Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations on any
amendments or updates (if any);

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and our Group’s senior management;

38 reviewing and monitoring our Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to our Group’s employees
and Directors;

5. reviewing our Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under the CG
Code; and

0. being responsible for performing any other corporate governance
duties and functions set out in the CG Code and the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time), or delegating the responsibility to
a committee or committees (if applicable).

The Board delegates to the management of the Group in respect of the
major corporate matters as stated below:

1. preparing of the annual and interim results of the Group to be
approved by the Board;

2. giving clear directions to the management team as to their powers
of management, and circumstances in which the management
team should report back;

3 implementing of sufficient systems of internal control and risk
management procedures of the Group;

4.  executing of the corporate strategies and directions of the Group
adopted by the Board; and

5. carrying out day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group, etc.
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The Board members are required to meet regularly at least four times a
year. The attendance of each Director at these meetings are stated as
follows:

EXeABFELETOARERER - BE
EHEZEERZBEREINOT ¢

Members of the Board

Attendance/
Number of
annual general
meeting held

Attendance/
Number of
Board meetings
regularly held

HERE HERE
EEZgER BREBFRE
ExgmE BRETRY BITIRE
Executive Directors:
BITES:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam 4/4 11
BRCEESE
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board) 4/4 11
BRABLRE(EFSLE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 11
IF B (TTB )
Ms. Chan Siu Ching (appointed on 1 November 2022) 2/2 0/0
BRNERL(FEAER202211H1H)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BIYFHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (resigned on 1 November 2022) 2/2 11
BRIK 88 5 & (R20224 11 4 1 A BEHT)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 4/4 11
RieME 5 HE
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 3/4 11
REE LA
Mr. Wong Kai Man (appointed on 1 November 2022) 2/2 0/0
Wong Kai Man5t 4 (Z £ R2022F 11 H1H)
Board meetings regularly held during the year were scheduled in @ MERBIT7EEZESERSEHREFELEL

advance, and notices of not less than fourteen days were given to all
Directors so as to give them an opportunity to attend. Board papers
were circulated to Directors not less than three days in advance before
the date of each Board meeting to enable the Directors to be well
informed on matters to be raised and discussed at the Board meetings.
All Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for the Board meetings.

In addition, the Directors had full and timely access at all times to all
information of our Group and may seek independent professional advice
at our Company’s expense in carrying out their functions after making a
request to the Board.
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The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, is the brother
of Mr. Chan Koung Nam, and both of them are the executive Directors
and substantial Shareholders of the Company. Ms. Chan Siu Ching,
who was appointed as the executive Director on 1 November 2022,
is the daughter of Mr. Chan Kwong Nam. Save as disclosed above or
elsewhere in this annual report, the Board members do not have any
family, financial, business or other material/relevant relationship with each
other and in particular, between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer as disclosed therein.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 76 to 78. The list of
Directors and their roles and functions have been published on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than three (3) months’ prior
notice in writing, and each of the independent non-executive Directors
has been appointed for an initial term of two years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than three (3) months’ prior
notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Ms. Chan
Siu Ching and Mr. Wong Kai Man, who were appointed as an executive
Director and an independent non-executive Director respectively on 1
November 2022, shall hold office until the date of the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one third of the directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Any Director appointed by the Board
pursuant to Article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong (independent non-
executive Director) will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

22

EEerERABEEERABALEZH
B EEHEBARAPTESRTERRE -
BR/NE L2022 11 B1BEZ T AT
B BBAEAEZLR o B EMsKER
FHREMEGHMAEEEIN  EFGKRECH
MEAWRE - W% EFAEMEKRH
BEE LERESgXRETHBR(RZ
HomiEEE) -

EEY BEREHAET6ET8E [ EER &
EEE-HRN - EFLERAACRBAER
R AR L 730 T B AR A ) R A8
35 o

EERERES
BERTEZCEARARLRBHE - 912
RYP=F YABEEEEZBEETLIR=Q3)E
AZEREMBARILE - SBIIFNPTES
ERNSEIHMFERIE  AABETEEE
BTAPR=QEAZELEMBMRL -

BIEESSEMBESIR)E  RNELLER
Wong Kai Manfc£120224%11 A1 8% Bll&
ZEARTEERBYIENTES  THE
REBEFRKgZAIE -

REBEASERARNEAE  HER=02—
MESREMARLIF=2EE - AREER
BRLR=ZDZ - Z ABHBREBEBRR
BFRERFEER HEBREFAELIE=
FRERBFASERE—X - REABER
AMAFESIQ)GREEFT G ANENEFTEE
EHERTNFEETHEZTHARTEE
BHEA - REEEHTAERNELERE
& o AUtk - REBS KA CBIERTES) K
BE5EE B IFNTESR) HRARRERER
RBFRGRE  IHAERBREL -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\_LL/\—/-\—\

TEERRSE

Training and support for Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2023, seminars, webinar, briefings
and reading materials had been provided and funded by our Group to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills (including but
not limited to corporate governance matters and any development or
updates on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements)
as their continuous professional development so as to keep abreast of
their collective responsibilities and to emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, all Directors had participated in
the continuous professional development, by attending external seminars
or webinar or reading materials on various topics covering regulations,
corporate governance, finance and business, etc. and the individual
training record of each Director is summarised below:

BEEEIIRLZE
HE2023F3A31HILFE "EBEAESE

REMSE  WBLASE GO KBEER
WAEBBEER  NBERBREFMAHER

R(BEETENEEEAREENRARLE
TMRAREGEREERE ERAERIK
MER)  EREZZHERRRR  ENE
ROTHEBREERBE  URRBEHAA
EE7AE  BERBE -

HZE2023F3ABIHILFE 2REFCLH

SEEXER - ERERBHEINHTE
WL eMERERD - XE0R B
BREBETRZEIMH  MEEZZE

RIS RSB an T -

Attending external seminars or
webinar/reading relevant materials
HEMIHNERIEL

Wt E BIEARREE A ALK

Executive Directors:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Koung Nam
BRCEESE
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Board)
RABLEE(EFSTE)
Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)
AT B (TR AEEL)
Ms. Chan Siu Ching (appointed on 1 November 2022)
BRNE L (FEAER202211/1H)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (resigned on 1 November 2022)
BRIk 48 5 A (R20224 11 A1 A BEHT)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
RirMG ot
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
KBS S
Mr. Wong Kai Man (appointed on 1 November 2022)
Wong Kai Man5t 4 (Z A R2022F 11 H1H)

Our Company will also continuously update our Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices, and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code to monitor the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by our Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they all have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code at all the applicable time throughout their tenure during the year
under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee to oversee the relevant aspects of our Group’s affairs.
The three Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of our Company was established with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

During the year, the roles and functions of the Audit Committee included:

(@ making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving
the remuneration and other terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b)  reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(c) developing and implementing policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(d)  monitoring the integrity of our Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein;

(e) reviewing our Group’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

® discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have effective systems;

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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(9 considering major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

(h)  reviewing our Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(i) reviewing our external auditor’'s management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of risk management and
control and management’s response;

() ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

(k)  reporting to the Board on the matters set out above;

(Iy reviewing arrangements employees of our Group can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, risk management, internal control or other
matters as well as our whistleblowing policy;

(m) acting as the key representative body for overseeing our
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

(n)  considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

The Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities as required in
accordance with its terms of reference during the year ended 31 March
2023 and the major of which are stated as:

1. reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim results, annual
results and financial statements of our Company and our Group
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments, and making
recommendations to the Board for approval;

2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and financial
policies and practices of our Group;

38 reviewing the interim report, annual report, and results
announcements of our Company;

4. considering and recommending to the Board for the re-
appointment of our Company’s independent external auditors;

5.  reviewing the connected transactions and discloseable
transactions; and
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6. reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, and reviewing the works performed
by the independent internal control advisor, namely, APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited
(*APAC”), on the risk management and internal control systems.

The members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong and Mr.
Wong Kai Man, all of them are independent non-executive Directors
whereas Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, except for Mr. Chan Siu Wing
Raymond and Mr. Wong Kai Man who were resigned and appointed
respectively on 1 November 2022 and therefore have met one time
only, other Audit Committee members have met two times, with the
attendance of our Company’s external auditor, in compliance with the
Code Provisions and the Audit Committee’s terms of reference. The
attendance of each member at these meetings is stated as follows:

6. BIAKERBREELABEZENEZ
PR - WigE B ARREE IR A A
REREAZRGEERAR(READS
R EE R AR SRR EET 2 TIE -

BEZZEgNEARRIEEE(ERZE®X
&)~ 5RE S o M Wong Kai Manft 4+ &
HEBIIENTES  KRIBLEHES
BRAREZ e HENBERER Y
BEERNER -

£
EE

HE2023F3A31HIEFE - BREKEEER
Wong Kai Manst 4 E 72022611 A1 H 5 5l
BERERT  MESRTREHEN - Efb
EZZESENECRITMAEHE(RNAFIINE
ZEMEKEER  FETABRXERERZEZE
SHREDSE)  SKENRZEERIHRELE
U

Attendance/
Number of Audit
Committee
Members of the Audit Committee meetings held
HERE
EREEEER
EREEERE BITRY
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYEHTES
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (resigned on 1 November 2022) 11
PRIKER L (R20224F 11 4 1 H B#HE)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
KWt (FELEEEFE)
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 2/2
RES 4
Mr. Wong Kai Man (appointed on 1 November 2022) 11

Wong Kai Man5t 4 (Z ER2022F 11 H1H)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the contents of this annual report.
The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed with the
management and external auditor of our Company the matters regarding
the internal controls, risk management, and financial reporting including
the accounting principles and practices related to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023,
and recommended them to the Board for approval.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Auditor’s Remuneration and Auditor Related Matters

The Audit Committee of our Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit services provided by our external auditor.
During the year, our Group has paid or payable to our external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the audit service in relation to the audit of
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 of HK$740,000 (2022: HK$800,000) and the non-audit service
in relation to the review of interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six-month ended 30 September 2022 of HK$350,000
(80 September 2021: HK$250,000), totalling HK$1,090,000 (2022:
HK$1,050,000) in aggregate. The Audit Committee considered that the
non-audit service has no adverse effect on the independence of the
auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

(@ making recommendations to the Board on our Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the Remuneration Policy;

(b) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

(d) considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in our Group;

(e) reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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® reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(@  ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee
(i) had determined the remuneration packages and bonus of executive
Directors and our Company’s senior management in relation to the
terms of their service agreements and in accordance with the written
remuneration policy of the Company (which had been reviewed during
the said year); (i) had assessed the performance of executive Directors
and the Company’s senior management; (iii) had reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy; (iv) had determined the Director’s remuneration and
Director’s fee of the newly appointed executive Director and independent
non-executive Director, respectively and approving the terms of their
service agreements; and (v) had reviewed the Directors’ fees of other
existing independent non-executive Directors.

Our Company has adopted and the Remuneration Committee has been
delegated with responsibility by the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the senior management
of our Company.

We have an established practice in determining our independent
non-executive Directors’ fees, which does not involve equity-based
remuneration with performance-related elements, with an aim to avoid
leading to bias in their decision-making and compromise their objectivity
and independence.

The members of the Remuneration Committee include Mr. Chu Yat Pang
Terry (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cheung Kok
Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chan
Koung Nam, an executive Director.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, all the committee members have
met three times. The attendance of each member at these meetings are
stated as follows:

HEC023FEIASIBILFE & =
BRITZAEH SHERZELTRZ

SR

Attendance/
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
Members of the Remuneration Committee meetings held
HERE
FHMZEEESeR
FHEESERE BITR™
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES :
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (Chairman of Remuneration Committee) 3/3
KeWS Lt FWEE 2+ /E)
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 3/3
RES S
Executive Director:
HITES
Mr. Chan Koung Nam 3/3
BRCEESE

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of our Company was established with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include:

@)

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement our Group’s corporate strategy;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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(c) assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors;

(d)  making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive; and

(e) reviewing regularly the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness of these policies
and reviewing any progress on achieving those objectives in these
policies.

The members of the Nomination Committee include Mr. Chan Kwong
Yin William, an executive Director and Chairman of the Board (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung
Kok Cheong, both are independent non-executive Directors.

Our Nomination Committee, which comprised a majority of independent
non-executive Directors, was chaired by the Chairman of the Board
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Our Company has complied with Rules 3.27A of the Listing Rules,
requiring that the Nomination Committee should be chaired by the
Chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive director and
comprised of a majority of independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held to (i) review and assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors who have served for the Company
for more than nine years pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the CG
Code; (i) review the appointments of Ms. Chan Siu Ching and Mr. Wong
Kai Man, as the new executive Director and independent non-executive
Director, respectively; (i) assess the independence of other independent
non-executive Directors; (iv) review the re-appointment of retiring
Directors at the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company; (v) review
the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and determine
the policy; (vi) review the roles of the existing Directors and ascertain
whether any conflict of interests had been arisen for the Directors; and (vii)
review the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy of the Company
to ensure their effectiveness.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, two meetings of the Nomination ~ #E2023F3A31BILEE - REEEZEgD R
Committee were held and all members had attended these meetings TWMA € @ 2RKEHBELREZS S H
with their respective records of attendance as follows: HBESEZLRFEEAT ¢
Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Members of the Nomination Committee meeting held
HERE
REZEEER
REZBEERE BITR™
Executive Director:
HITES:
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 2/2
RABEEGRELZEEFE)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYEHTES:
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry 2/2
RieME L E
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong 2/2
SREE S A4

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Nomination policy

The Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy” which governs the criteria,
procedures and process of nomination of Directors, so as to ensure that
the Board should (i) have a balance of skills and experience; (i) always
maintain the minimum number of independent non-executive Directors
as required under the Listing Rules; and (i) ensure the independency of
those independent non-executive Directors.

When identifying, assessing and recommending suitable candidates for
directorship for the Board’s consideration, the Nomination Committee
will take into account our Group’s current needs and qualities needed for
the Board’s service, including but not limited to:

(@  his/her ethical, integrity and maturity characters, educational and
professional backgrounds, experience in money lending business
or other relevant industry, and expertise in that area;
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(b)  his/her willingness to devote the required amount of time to
carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the Board and various
committees’ membership for multiple terms. In this regards,
the numbers of offices held by the candidates in other public
companies or organisations, and other significant commitments,
etc. will be considered;

(¢) any potential conflict of interest with the Group’s business and
assessment of the independence if he/she is appointed as
independent non-executive Directors; and

(d)  his/her willingness to comply with the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements in full for discharging his/her obligations.

For those potential candidates who appear upon first consideration
to meet the above criteria, the Nomination Committee will conduct
appropriate inquiries and arrange for in-person meeting with such
candidates. Depending on the results of such inquiries and interviews,
the Nomination Committee will propose this candidate to the Board for
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Board diversity

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy”, which requires
the Nomination Committee of our Company to review annually the
structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board for achieving diversity to our Board members, so as to enhance
the quality of our performance. In relation to reviewing and assessing
the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee has considered a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience.

During the year, the Company’s implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy incorporated the measurement of female Board representation
as a quantifiable objective. On 1 November 2022, the Company has
appointed Ms. Chan Siu Ching as its first female executive Director
and as of 31 March 2023, the Board was made up of one female and
six male Directors, reflecting the Company’s on-going belief to achieve
gender diversity. The Company shall continue to uphold the appointment
based on merit principle while adhering to the Board Diversity Policy
on the whole, and aim to maintain a comparable level of female
representation on the Board.
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Further, as at 31 March 2023, the workforce (including executive
Directors and senior management) has accomplished a gender ratio of
49 males : 51 females, which represented a measurable goal for gender
diversity of the Group. For more information concerning the composition
of the Group’s workforce, please refer to the section named “Social
Aspects” under the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Apart from the gender diversity, the Board and the Nomination
Committee will also consider all other measurable objectives that have
been set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board as selection
criteria for potential candidate to the Board. The Company aims to build
and maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board that are considered beneficial to the Company, and will regularly
review the progress on achieving those measurable objectives set out in
the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board and Nomination Committee have reviewed and will continue
to review the implementation and effectiveness of this policy on an annual
basis, as appropriate, and discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe as
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and Rule 13.49(6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of our Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
which gives a true and fair view of our Group’s financial affairs for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of our Group is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Risk management and internal control

The maintenance of a sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems in our Group is important to safeguard our Shareholders’
investment and our Group assets.

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to oversee our Group’s
risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and to review their effectiveness at least annually. These systems are
designated to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
our business objectives, and could only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, with the assistance from APAC, our Group has
identified and evaluated the relevant risks of our Group through a series
of interviews. During the risk identification and evaluation processes,
relevant risks were identified, evaluated and categorised into four
sections, namely financial, compliance, strategic and operational, and our
Group maintained a risk register to keep track of all identified risks which
provided to our Board, the Audit Committee and our management a
profile of those major and significant risks and a record of management’s
action taken to mitigate these risks. Each risk is evaluated at least
annually based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact to
our Group. This risk register is updated by our management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation and review
have been performed.

During the year, there were no significant risks identified under the
categories of financial risk. The following principal and significant risks
of the Group, identified and classified into strategic risk, operational and
compliance risks, were as follows:

Strategic risks:

Unfavourable macro-economic condition and the diverse factors, such
as military conflict between Russia and Ukraine, the surge of Fed interest
rate and of the inflation rate in the U.S., etc. may affect the economic
and business conditions. Hence, cost of funding, revenue, financial
performance, operational results and business prospects may be
materially and adversely affected.

On the other hand, keen competition in the money lending industry and
existing property market speculation restrictive measures continuously
implemented by the Hong Kong Government may materially and
adversely affect business, financial performance and operational results
of the Group.
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Operational risks:

The decline in the value or residual value of mortgaged property will
lead to the reduction of the safety margin of the loan, and the risk of
recovering the full amount of the loan receivables will be increased when
they come to default.

Compliance risks:

Apart from the MLO and the Listing Rules, the Group also placed
significant awareness on the compliance of Anti-Money Laundering
(“AML”) and Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CTF”). Any non-compliance
and/or violation with the relevant guidelines on AML-CTF matters may
expose significant compliance risk to the Group and the Group may
commit offences under the laws of Hong Kong. Besides, the resource
and cost in managing and minimising the compliance risk of AML and
CTF may also be high to the Group.

During the year, the Board has appointed APAC to review and assess
our Group’s effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
and compliance controls, with a view to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of our accounting and financial reporting functions. APAC
had prepared the risk assessment report and internal control report
to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review, which covered
all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance
and strategical controls and risk management function and control
of our Group. Moreover, improvements in internal control systems
as recommended by APAC to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of our Group were also adopted by the Board.
Based on the review findings and recommendation of APAC as well
as the comments and suggestion of our Audit Committee, our Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

Function of internal audit

Currently our Group has no internal audit function. The Board has
discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of
the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business
of our Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform our internal audit functions and
to review, at least annually, our risk management and internal control
systems. Although our Group did not establish internal audit function
during the year, the Board will continue to review a least annually the
need for the function of internal audit.
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Inside information

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. Our Group has adopted
the inside information policy which aims to set out guidelines to the
Group’s directors, officers and all relevant employees to ensure inside
information (as defined below) of the Group is to be disseminated to the
public in an equal and timely manner in accordance with the applicable
laws and regulations.

The term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group, because
of his office or employment, who is likely to be in possession of the
unpublished inside information (as defined below).

Under the new Part XIVA of the SFO, inside information is the specific
information about the Company, its Shareholders or officers or its listed
securities or derivatives, which is not generally known to the persons
who are accustomed, or would be likely, to deal in the company’s listed
securities but would, if generally known to them, be likely to materially
affect the price of the Company’s listed securities.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s inside information policy, no matters arose from the review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2023, our Company Secretary
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with our Shareholders and other
stakeholders and encouraging them to communicate actively with our
Company.

This policy sets out the principles of our Company in relation to
Shareholders’ communications, with the objective of ensuring that the
communications with our Shareholders and other stakeholders (including
potential investors) with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about our Group (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, corporate
governance and risk profile), in order to enable our Shareholders and
other stakeholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner mainly
through our Company’s corporate communications (such as interim
reports and annual reports, announcements and circulars, and notices
of meetings), annual general meetings and other general meetings, as
well as disclosure on the websites of our Company and of the Stock
Exchange, respectively.
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Announcements, interim reports, annual reports and circulars and
associated explanatory documents etc. are despatched to our
Shareholders and are also published on the websites of our Company
and of the Stock Exchange under a dedicated “Investor Relations”
section thereon as soon as practicable in plain language and in both
English and Chinese versions or where permitted, in single language,
and will be updated on a regular basis and in a timely manner.

QOur Company’s website provides our Shareholders and other
stakeholders with the corporate information, such as our principal
business activities and products, the development of corporate
governance and the corporate social responsibilities of our Group, etc.

Our Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and effective communication with our Shareholders
and analysts by maximising the use of our Company’s website as a
channel to disclose our Group’s updated information and corporate
communications to our Shareholders, stakeholders and the public on a
timely basis. Our Company also encourages our Shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of our Group’s businesses
and convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior
management.

Our Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy during the year. The senior
management discussed any revisions that may be required, and
recommended any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval on the aspects including (i) how to ensure the Company to
provide shareholders and the investment community with equal and
timely access to the information about the Group, and (i) the ways to
enhance effective communication with shareholders through various
platforms and channels specified in the policy.

Shareholders’ rights

1.  Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of our Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our Company,
shall at all times have the right to require an extraordinary general
meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board.
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of our Company at our principal place of
business in Hong Kong for the purpose of requiring an EGM of
our Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business or resolution specified in such requisition.

Such EGM will be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If the requisition is in order, an EGM will be convened by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements under the
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules to all Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, an
EGM will not be convened as requested.

Depending on the nature of the proposals, any EGM of our
Company at which the passing of a special resolution is to be
considered shall be called by notice of not less than twenty-
one clear days. All other EGM of our Company may be called by
notice of not less than fourteen clear days (whereas the notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or deemed
to be served and of the day for which it is given), together with
the accompanying circular which also sets out details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries such as their shareholdings,
share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of
share certificates or dividend warrants, registration and payment
of dividend, etc. to our Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited:

Address Suites 3301-04, 33/F.
Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road
North Point, Hong Kong

Email info@unionregistrars.com.hk

Tel . (852) 2849 3399

Fax . (852) 2849 3319

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Shareholders and other stakeholders may also raise enquiries
in respect of our Group’s matters in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary whose contact details are as follow:

Address : Unit 3410, 34th Floor

Email

Tel

Fax

Tower ll, Lippo Centre

89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong
Kong

ir@hkfinance.com.hk

(852) 2525 3535

(852) 2525 3534

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

()

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

Pursuant to Articles 83(2) and 85 of the Articles of Association
and the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director of the Company”, which is available
at our Company’s website, a Shareholder who wishes to
propose a person other than a retiring Director for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting should lodge:

(@ notice in writing signed by him/her concerned of his/
her intention to propose a candidate for election as a
Director which must include the personal particulars of
this nominated candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules; and

(b)  notice in writing signed by this nominated candidate to
be proposed indicating his/her willingness to be elected
and his/her consent to publish his/her information on
our Company’s announcement.

The above-mentioned notices should be lodged and
addressed to the Chairman of the Board or Chief Executive
Officer of our Company at our principal place of business in
Hong Kong, and the period for lodgment of these notices
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting and end no later than fourteen (14) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

3.

BREAEMFENEASERASEZE
ANERRARXEEET AR AW
o OBBHBENT

it 2 BB SESEESINR
HEF L
T E341E3410F

TFE : ir@hkfinance.com.hk
TiE © (852) 25253535
BEH : (852) 25253534

REBERAELREZRZZERF

() EEHEEFENIZATETE
%
RIEHEBEIRMAIES3(2) %85
i URIERIEBEAEZELAED
AEENER](AIRARFNLE
B) » BRR AN AR R R AT E FE AN
ZATREMBREREAS F2RE
£ EEX :

@ HMABEBREASEES
ZATREEZBME  KLA
I LR ANEA3.51(Q A
MEZRBBREAZFT
&

b) BEEBHEBRZZEREREA
REZBME KPHBE
BEREREBERARAB QML
THEEER -

PRBHEARRITERTETE
BRI TARREZTSIERT
BaE  ZERMNEZERART
BRRAGREZAMG - YRNA
FARCR A S B BT NER + IH(14)
REER ©

EREEEEERAR

2023%F R 39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

;LM/\—/-\—\\ =+
TEERMET

(i) Procedures for putting other forward proposals at general
meetings:

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general
meeting, Shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with their detailed contact information to
our Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
our Company in Hong Kong. The notice period to be given
to all Shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised
by the Shareholders concerned at general meetings varies
according to the nature of the proposal.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2023, our Shareholders have approved
and adopted the amended Articles of Association. Details of the
amendments to the Articles of Association are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 20 July 2022.

Our Company’s latest versions of Articles of Association are available on
the websites of our Company and of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Dividend policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy to allow Shareholders to
participate in our Group’s profit whilst retaining adequate reserves for
our Group’s future growth. Any distribution of dividends shall be in
accordance with the Articles of Association and with the applicable laws
and regulations. The Board may distribute dividends by way of cash,
shares, or by other means as the Board considers as appropriate.

Profit distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability and
should take into account of (i) the earning per share of our Group; (ii)
reasonable return in investment of the investors and the shareholders; (i)
general financial conditions, cash flow situation, and business plan, future
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus of our Group;
(iv) any restrictions on payment of dividends by our Company’s or the
Group’s lenders; (v) the general market sentiment and circumstances;
and (vi) other factors the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will continue to review this policy as appropriate, and may
declare and distribute final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends from time to time.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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INTRODUCTION

Since the establishment of our Group more than twenty years ago, our
Group has been principally engaged in the money lending business of
providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong.
In October 2013, our Group was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and we are the first Hong Kong listed company specialising
in property mortgages with a solid financial background and high
transparency. We are still focusing on our core business in property
mortgage loans under our well-known and highly recognised brand name
“Hong Kong Finance”. We also expanded our money lending business in
personal loan products in order to diversify ourselves in different money
lending market segments, to capture new market opportunity and to
enhance our overall interest margin.

We aim to provide “professional, reliable and flexible” mortgage services
to our customers. Our experienced sales managers provide customised
solutions based on the specific needs of customers. In order to build
a harmonious community, our Group strives to maintain a sustainable
business and contribute to the society.

Sustainable development is an integral part of our business strategy in
order to achieve business excellence and to enhance capabilities for
long-term competitiveness. Our Group is committed to maintaining our
operation in manner that is economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable while balancing the interests of our various stakeholders
and foster a positive impact on the society. Our sustainability strategy
is based on the compliance with the applicable legal requirements,
principle of sustainability and opinions from stakeholders. We have
established and implemented various policies to manage and monitor
the risks related to the environment, employment, operating practices
and community. Details of the management approaches to sustainable
development of different areas are illustrated in this report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or
will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the
potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities, products,
services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand risks and
opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s roles
and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group engages
with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial relationships and to
seek their views on its business proposals and initiatives as well as to
promote sustainability in the marketplace, workplace, community and
environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to our business and established various channels for
communication. The following table provides an overview of the Group’s
key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of communication
are used to reach, listen and respond.

ERAEB s ACHBE  KBEHASILER
e BOETRERLEZE - AEB RS
MEGIEERGNBEER YRESERAEH
E¥BEZMAEZER UREEMSE - LT
ESGFT - HERIRIRAIFELRE -

$%E%Eﬂﬁﬁ@%7ﬁﬁgﬂ$%.¥
BEH AR REAREEEZWBEEE -
$§nﬁ<EE&%'J%T%TF?%%:E@EEZIE%
mE WRLSEBEREE - TREMAE
BExXrZ2HmnEURANEE RERKDE
BEFEMEBRAE -

Stakeholders
BH0E

Issues of concern

BXER

Engagement channels

BERE

Government and °
regulatory o
authorities o

Comply with the laws and regulations
Proper tax payment

Promote regional economic development
and employment

B REEHEA o ETEREARNER
o AR
o MFERMLEBRNMIE

e  On-site inspections and checks

e Research and discussion through work
conferences, work reports preparation
and submission for approval

e Annual reports and announcements

e Company website

o BB kiRE

o BBTEEE  mEITIEmE MR

R BT FT S 5 7
o FHRRERM
o ARRMEL

Shareholders e Return on the investment
and e |nformation disclosure and transparency
Investors e Protection of interests and fair treatment of
shareholders
BRRERREE o KREMR
o EXEERERE
o RERFHMZRATFFS

e Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

Annual reports and announcements
Newsletter

Meeting with investors and analysts
Websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange

e  Company contact information

o BRERBFRERHMBERERE

o FHEAM

e BF

s HEREENROSNEEME

o 7R A8 uh R Bk A2 B Ak

o ERTMBER
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Stakeholders
&

Issues of concern

BXER

Engagement channels

BEERE

Employees e Safeguard the rights and interests of e Meetings and conferences
employees e Trainings, seminars, briefing sessions
e Working environment e Entertainment, cultural and sport
e Career development opportunities activities
e  Self-actualisation e Feedback box
e QOccupational health and safety
e  Staff remuneration, benefits and well-being
B8 o {RIZ[ESREFN KER s BENMEGHE
e I{ERIE o il #HAFNERENE
e EXUERKT o IRE . LKEERED
e BHIHER o ERREM
e BEREREZE
o BIHM - BA KB
Customers e  Safe and high-quality products e Email and customer service hotline
e  Stable relationship e Visits and meetings
e |nformation transparency
e Business ethics
'R o BEREBEEmM o TBHREPRBERR
. BEME - BHREE
o ARER
o WHEBERE
Bank ® To repay loans on schedule, monitor e Work conferences
operating conditions and risks and operate e  On-site visits, post-loan tracking and
with honesty and credibility various business communication
R1T . E%E%%m mﬁ“ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ o IfFE&
B E T & e BHIHE  BEREMKEERHEEM
Financial e Compliance with the laws and regulations e Work conferences
Institution e  On-site visits, post-loan tracking and
various business communication
M o TERERERER o T{EEE
e BT EREMLZEREERN
Peer/Industry e Experience sharing and cooperation e Industry conference and seminars
associations e Fair competition e  Site visit
B TEHE o M%”=EA¢ s TEXRgZNHNE
o NYEEF e EMIFE
Media e Transparent information e Media
B e EREHR o {HE
Public and e Community involvement e Volunteering

Communities

PBRATRHE

e Social responsibilities

. Ziuu//\
= EEEE

e \Vilage visiting

e  Charity and social investment
o ETRI

o NEHEE

o HERMEREAE
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Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting
by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators
(KPIs) are reported in this report according to recommendations of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the GRI
Guidelines.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

° Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant
ESG reports of the local and international industry peers

° The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the important of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

° The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

° Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in the year ended 31 March 2023,
those important ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this report.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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ESG GOVERNANCE

Board’s oversight of ESG issues
Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the management of the
Group’s sustainability issues. During the year, the Board spent time
in evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our operation and
formulating relevant policy in dealing with the risks. The oversight of
the Board is to ensure the management to have all the right tools and
resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-
term value creation.

ESG Working Group

The Group attaches great importance to ESG work. Under the leadership
of the Board, a working group has been set up (“ESG Working Group”)
to implement specific safety and environmental protection work so as
to comply with government requirements, implement the concept of
“safety and environmental protection” in its operation and fulfil its social
responsibilities.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process and its risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the ESG Working Group at
the meeting, which holds once per year. During the reporting period,
the ESG Working Group and the management reviewed the ESG
governance and different ESG issues. The ESG Working Group mainly
consisted of an executive Director and two senior management of the
Group.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
each year. We ensure various platforms and channels of communication
are used to reach, listen and respond to our key stakeholders. Through
general communication with stakeholders, the Group understands the
expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained
allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and to better assess
and manage the resulting impact.
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by
industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritisation with stakeholder
engagement; and (3) validation and determining material ESG issues
based on results of communication among stakeholders and the
management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their degree
and change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can enable

us to

more comprehensively plan our sustainable development work in

the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified during our
material assessment were discussed in this report.

46

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group is mainly involved in office operations and its business
activities do not have significant impact on the environment or
natural resources. In spite of this, as a financial services provider,
we recognise that we have an obligation to reduce the impact of
our operations on the environment and be accountable for the
resources and materials that are used in our daily operations.
We are committed to continuously improving our environmental
sustainability by responsibly managing our operation, reducing our
carbon footprint and using resources effectively.

Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong, such
as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Sewage
Services Ordinance (Cap. 463) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354). Besides, no concluded case regarding environmental
issues was brought against us or our employees. We also regularly
update itself with the latest development of the applicable laws and
regulations on environmental protection.

Apart from complying with the environmental protection rules and
standards, the Group emphasises environmental protection and
seeks ways to enhance efficiency in the use of natural resources
and reduce the environmental impact of its business operation.
We take the initiative to formulate and implement the “Corporate
Environmental Policy” to establish relevant emissions reduction and
energy saving initiatives internal policies and campaigns to facilitate
the effective use of natural resources and eco-friendly operation.
We also encourage employees to build up environmental-friendly
habits through notice and promotion to save resources and
minimise pollution.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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EMISSIONS
Air Pollutant Emissions

Air pollutant emissions control is essential to mitigate the impact
on the environment and to protect the health of employees.
As the Group is mainly involved in general office activities, the
amount of air pollutant emissions is insignificant. Our air pollutant
emissions are mainly generated from the mobile sources. We take
initiative to formulate plans in transportation management for the
reduction of air pollutant emissions in our daily business operation,
for example encouraging employees and clients to take video
conference instead of unnecessary transportation. The increase
in air pollutant emissions in 2023 was mainly attributable to the
increase in the uses of vehicles for business purposes during the
year. Furthermore, the Group targets to manage the reduction of
air pollutants emissions to be in line with the growth of our Group’s
money lending business or the increase of employee number
in medium to long term time horizon in future. The detail of air
pollutant emissions of the Group during the reporting period was
as follows:

A1l.

BB

ZERITRM B

R ZE SRS R BB IR 2 %
ERREREREZEZE—R - ANAK
SEIEPR—RPL=EY BWER
SRR EEN - HAAZZRTRY
FREEREBHR - HAZTHHER
BERAE URDAEEBPZZER
ERMBER - Pl B E B ME P ERA
BEEZWME TV EBLHE » 20234
ZERGRDFREN - TBHRFR
EBRENIEREEM - I KK
BB EREEBDERISRYBMN -
EHEREBRERBHIERIARESD
REA B T ABAIE IREF — B - NI
EHA - AEEZERSEMIEREFBENR
T

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANALEE

Type of Air Pollutant Emission Unit 2023 2022
ZER5RYE R B 20234 2022%F
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) kg 8.52 6.38
REEP(NOy) NI
Sulphur dioxide (SO2) kg 0.16 0.12
ZE{bH(SOy) UNIY
Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.63 0.47
2 RLF (PM) NI

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emission

GHG is considered as one of the major contributors to the climate
change and global warming. The Group recognises that climate
change is gradually concerned by the community as it affects our
daily life and poses a risk to its business. Hence, we are committed
to mitigating the effects of climate change and to protecting the
health of employees.
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The major sources of our GHG emission are the fuel used by
vehicles and indirect emission through electricity consumption
for our office operations. The Group strives to improve energy
efficiency and reduce energy consumption so as to minimise GHG
emission by adopting energy saving initiatives mentioned in the
section “Use of Resources” of this ESG Report. The increase in
GHG emissions for the year ended 31 March 2023 was mainly
attributable to the increase in the uses of vehicles for business
purposes during the year. The Group will strive to reduce the GHG
emissions to be in line with the growth of our Group money lending
business or increase of employee number in medium to long term
time horizon in future.

The detail of GHG emissions of the Group during the reporting
period was as follow:

B2 BEREHEREZRE AEMA
MR R B AR AEEEREMmMEEZBE
e REEBBRNBBRMARE L2
MERREANIERERB | — AT A B
S RS AR E LR AR
HMmBERDBEREHER - #F2023
FIABIALFEZAEREHREE
m EEHRFREBSAENAERE
e REBB AR IR EREBHEN
FHERAEBREEFZRSKARRF
REINE T ASAIG IR — 5K -

PR AP+ A A R A
T

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HLEE

Type of GHG Emission Unit 2023 2022
BERBEERER By 2023%F 20224
Scope 1' tonnes of CO2e 28.88 21.65
&1 WS bIRE S
Scope 22 tonnes of CO2e 26.13 27.39
& [F22 WAk E =
Total GHG emission tonnes of CO2e 55.01 49.04
BERBAEENE WS LIRE S
GHG emission intensity tonnes of CO2e/area in sq. ft. 0.01 0.01

RERBHREZE

Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by our
Group.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity
consumed by our Group.
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Waste management is considered as one of the material topics in
environmental protection. The Group recognises the importance
of waste reduction. Waste management measures have been
introduced and implemented to minimise the amount of waste
generated and the impact on the environment. With our business
nature, no hazardous waste is generated or discharged during the
office operation.

For non-hazardous waste, the waste is mainly generated from
daily office operation. The Group takes initiative to reduce waste
by formulating effective measures. Generally, we have engaged
qualified recycling companies to collect and handle the waste in
accordance to the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354) in Hong
Kong. The major source of our non-hazardous waste is paper
waste.

With the aim to reduce the amount of waste generated, the Group
endeavors to cultivate environmental awareness among employees.
In order to reduce the paper consumption, we encourage our
employees to consider environmental-friendly printing such as
double-sided printing and copying. We also encourage employees
to reuse single sided non-confidential print out. The waste paper is
reused as fillers for packing when practicable.
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On top of that, the Group actively promotes electronic
communication such as emails to reduce the amount of paper
used. In addition to paper saving, we also encourage employees
to reuse stationery such as envelopes and use reusable items such
as reusable cutleries and cups. All these measures are geared
at reducing waste such as paper waste which can help mitigate
the global greenhouse effect as well. Recycling bags are available
for paper collection. All paper boxes, paper, newspaper and
magazines are collected for recycling purpose. The amount of non-
hazardous waste generated for the year ended 31 March 2023
remained stable when compared with 2022 as the Group strived
for finding ways to manage the office waste effectively during the
year. The Group has set comprehensive reduction target on non-
hazardous waste generation to be in line with the growth of our
Group’s money lending business or increase of employee number
in medium to long term time horizon in future. The detail of non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group during the reporting
period was as follows:

FEENR  ASERGHEERFERAEE
EETENATN WBLBEE - BES
EREI  BMTEBEEEREHS
NERR WERAEEFEACZEAR
KNERERY® - FTBERERESE
ERVERSREZEY  HWREBEHRER
KAZEWE - BMERBERRIWER
ok o HMREMBASE - 4R - MAR
MISEQW A - BE2023%43A31H
IEFEEAMNBEREEY S H022F
LhHERETE  HERAEBFREANE
HKERERRAEBREZEYNF L - A&
By BEEEMAEENZEREEE
F - FHERSBEREEBNERKK
RPREANE T ASAIEMNRE B -
RIERRN - AEEMELEEZEEYD
BT

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3AALEE

Type of Wastes Disposal Unit 2023 2022
REEEYER By 20234 2022%F
Non-hazardous waste disposed tonnes 3.20 3.00
RERETEREY i

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee 0.07 0.07
EEREYEE ==

During the reporting period, non-hazardous waste recycled by the
Group was as follows:

RIS IR - A T O R E R R R
T :

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILEE

Type of Wastes Recycled Unit 2023 2022
EE 2kl By 2023%F 20224
Paper recycled tonnes 0.43 0.43
B g 4 o Mg

Paper recycled intensity tonnes/employee 0.01 0.01
14y 4 ok = 2 W& 8
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A2. USE OF RESOURCES A2. EiRfEH

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. We have
an in-depth understanding of the importance of safeguarding
sustainable development of the environment and this to attach
importance to efficient utilisation of resources by introducing
various measures in daily office operation. We understand that staff
participation is the key to achieve such goals. We strive to build up
a working environment that emphasises the “green office” policy
such as a set of guidelines to improve the efficient use of resources
for long-term sustainability. We also motivate our employees
to participate in resources conservation activities to promote
resources saving.

Energy Consumption

The Group considers environmental protection as an essential
component of a sustainable and responsible business. With aims
of resource saving and implementation of energy saving measures,
we actively promote the concept of energy saving and emission
reduction into the entire process of its business development and
operation and implements different energy saving measures.

Regarding energy consumption of the Group, petrol and purchased
electricity mainly result from fuel used by vehicles and premises
operation respectively. The Group endeavors to reduce the energy
consumption by advocating various energy conservation strategies.
For examples, we choose to use power-saving facilities and
reduce the number of equipment used. Computers are switched
to energy-saving mode when they are not in use for a long period
of time. All power supply in the area is switched off while idle.
Besides, the temperature of air-conditioners is maintained at an
energy-efficient level to reduce the energy consumption. Energy
conservation reminders are placed to increase employees’
awareness of energy saving. We will consistently seek ways to
improve energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption in our
facilities in the future. The increase in energy consumption for the
year ended 31 March 2023 was mainly attributable to the increase
in the uses of vehicles for business purposes during the year.
The Group has set inclusive total energy consumption reduction
target to be in line with the growth of our Group’s money lending
business or increase of employee number in medium to long term
time horizon in future.

AEBERRR/UFELABTELEL
BER2E - RARBREREAFHESR
REMEZ  MRBAEMRAELETE
TEEER  ERAXERER - &M
AR EEREFERCHERENE TS
B BZABHRERRMAFERERE
ERFIFERAEIBRZ TIERE
FRBRRBR - ESGEEERERER
235l - BRI EERE 2 BERRE
EE) - MEERER

RETRFE A3
AEBEERRSAUFELARELELZ
BEELER - RENERKERIAER
ait o RARNBEXRGER R EERRE
o A& 15 HE R B 49 BE R KR A BE ) iR
2 YEETRELERERE -

RAKERFER T E - Ul NRBA
BOARIEEREBTEMARE RYE
LIE - ARBEENEBEZ AR
HWABERER - BHIME - HFVEESE
AEERBALBMDFAAREHE  BE
RERERZERNAZEERN B
MRAMBEREER - I RAKE
AR EHEFFEETRE KT - DARI A BEIR#E
- BMPREERRET  UESEEZ
EiEEEH - WM ARS NS RERT
% R R R R R MR RETR
FA - 8 E2023F3A31H ILFE IR
FERIEM  TEARFARBRENA
EREEMN AEBERTEATEENE
BREBRFERAND BT EHEKXEER
BEEBHERIARKTERARNETAK
B ARRAT — B ©

@ 55

EREEEEERAR

20235 % 5 1



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In

952

B HEREARS

The detail of energy consumption of the Group during the reporting REEHA  AEEERERFBN
period was as follows: ™

For the year ended 31 March

BZESASIALEE

Type of Energy Unit 2023 2022
BEIR 2 Bl B 20234 20224
Purchased electricity MWh 38.43 38.58
BAES JK LB
Petrol MWh 96.52 72.36
YU JKFL B
Total energy consumption MWh 134.95 110.94
gEREFES JK LB
Energy consumption intensity MWh/area in sq. ft. 0.03 0.03
EREARE KRR, §FHREE
Water Consumption Ak

Water is another important resource used during the daily
operations. The business of our Group is operated in office
premises where water supply is solely controlled by and centrally
managed by the respective property management of the building.
In this case, it is not feasible for the Group to provide all relevant
water consumption data as there is no separate meter for the
individual office unit to record water usage. In spite of this, we
strive to prevent unnecessary water consumption by promptly
reporting to the relevant department in case of a leaking faucet. We
also actively raise employees’ awareness of water saving through
green office policies such as reminding employees to turn faucet
off tightly and conducting regular inspection and maintenance of
water facilities.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group’s two main operating segments: (i) property mortgage
loans and (ii) personal loans have no significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. Notwithstanding, we continue
to enhance the environmental awareness of our employees,
customers, shareholders and business partners and enlist their
supports in improving our environmental performance. With the
integration of policies and measures to reduce air pollutants and
GHG emissions, waste generation and resources consumption,
we strive to enhance environmental sustainability and minimise
our impacts on the environment. We will review our environmental
policy from time to time and will consider implementing further eco-
friendly measures and practices in order to enhance environmental
sustainability.

CLIMATE CHANGE
Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based on the nature of
the risk to our operations. The physical impacts of climate change,
including extreme weather events, or damage to facilities have
immediate operational impacts and are treated as operational risks.
Long-term challenges, such as emerging ESG issues and climate-
related risks and opportunities, may be discussed by the ESG
Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board meetings
and ensures that they are incorporated into our strategy.

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of climate-
related issues, climate competence training will be provided to
ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills to oversee the
management of climate-related issues. Our Board also seeks
professional advice from external experts when necessary to better
support the decision-making process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate change,
within our business. The ESG Working Group is responsible
for approving operational emissions targets for the Group and
commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as well as gap analysis
exercise to identify gaps in both disclosure and policy relative to
the best practice standards. Moreover, the ESG Working Group
works closely with the Group’s different operation departments,
with an aim to develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the management.
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile through
its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of certain
diseases, and the health and mortality impacts resulting from
natural disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by taking into
consideration a range of diverse risk factors across the many
categories in our product or services range. This diversity of risk
is combined with our business strategy and broad geographic
footprint helps us distribute risk and provide protection against the
impacts of short-term climate change effects.

Our services continue to provide protection for people in our
communities against weather and heat-related disease. Besides,
we continue to explore opportunities to engage our business
partners and encourage them to develop climate resilience
and reduce their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration of different climate-related scenarios, including a “2C
or lower scenario” through the following steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such
as stricter policies including the introduction of and increases in
carbon pricing, as well as advances in technology and changes
in customer awareness. In light of these climate change effects,
based on the International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and
others, we developed multiple future images as the external
environment that will surround our Group.

With regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2 scenario
(2DS) and pictured future images in case where climate change
measures do not progress and where such measures progress
further “Beyond 2T scenario”.
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the future
images developed in Step 1. We believe that it will be possible to
expedite carbon dioxide reduction effects in our society.

With regard to the effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of and increases in carbon pricing is
anticipated in accordance with the global advance of climate
change measures, leading to the possibility of higher raw material
procurement and production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change measures
are not adequate throughout society, production interruptions and
supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a result of higher
frequency and intensification of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-renewable
energy in our daily operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for the regions where the
emission factors of purchased electricity consumptions are high.
By promoting real carbon emissions reductions throughout the
world through these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve
zero carbon emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive energy-
saving and introduction of renewable energy. With respect to
renewable energy, in particular, we have set a new target, achieve
a reduction rate for purchased electricity in coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group’s strategies, we believe that we will have
opportunities for stable funding and sustainable increases in
corporate value through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other stakeholders.

Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to test the
existing risk management strategies under climate change with the
aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new strategies are
needed could be identified.
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The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach using
national data, local information and expert knowledge, which can
identify how climate change may compound existing risks or create
new ones. The risk assessment is conducted through the following
steps:

Step 1: Establish the context
° Objective/goal

° Scale

° Time frame

o Climate change scenario for most climate variables and sea
level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)
o Identify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in the
past in the area

° Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

° Explore climate change projections for the selected time
frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

° Identify potential hazards

° Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may get
worse under future projected changes

o Identify new risks that can emerge under future projected
changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e. geographical areas,
business operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential
to be at risk in future.

As outlined within the Governance section above, the Group has
robust risk management and business planning processes that
are overseen by the Board in order to identify, assess and manage
climate-related risks. The Group engages with government
and other appropriate organizations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard to
monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our operations, assets and
profits. Our Group assesses how the business addresses climate
change risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor
and reduce their environmental footprint.
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Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related physical
risks and transition risks, which have impacted and/or may impact

our Group’s business and strategy in (i) operations, products
and services, (i) supply chain and value chain, (i) adaptation and
mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research and development,
and (v) financial planning, as well as the steps taken to manage

these risks, are as follows:

9 (i) EENETRIRD - (VIFERE
VB HREEHEEETENHRKA
HMHNEAERERIBERR - UMK
ERZERBRMERNEREIINOT -

Climate-related risks description

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

Acute physical risks
SMEBER

° Increased severity and
frequency of extreme weather
events such as cyclones,
floods and earthquakes, the
frequency and severity of
traffic accidents. These have
the potential to cause both
idiosyncratic and systematic
risks, resulting in non-
favourable financial impacts.
1R R SR S (I RE ~ 3tk
R E) R ERE M AMER -
R E B E AN SER AR
e ZEBERD ] B G BT
IR R e Ry - (¢
EETHIHBE -

o Increased likelihood and
severity of wildfire. Financial
loss occurs as there are
interruptions of supply chain,
logistics and transportation.
BRI B RERE
N o g - YR RIER
RETRIBE S| BB TSR K -

o Operating cost
increases
EERARIE M

o Revenue decreases

Yoz 4

S5 16 A [ B Y M E AREEZZEARMERRNERE
Physical Risk
ERER

° Planned to adopt scenario analysis to
disclose an organization’s planning
under future scenarios, most notably
one with in a 2T scenario.

STEIR AR R DT AR B A e
RRFERWOETE - ERETRI2E
BRPEEETE -

° Planned to establish a natural
disasters emergency plan and to
provide certain trainings to the staff.
BRI EAXERSEARRME
THRftE T -
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Climate-related risks description

$R.06% A8 B8 L e Y 4

Financial Impact

BT

Steps taken to manage the risks

HEEZ SRR R E

Chronic physical risks

BEERER

o Extreme variability in weather
patterns. Frequent extreme
weather events and rising in
sea levels are likely to pose
disruptions to communities
across the region over the
long term, affecting economic
output and our service
continuity.

KRB e ikim A #1E o ¢
REKRE - AENRHRR
EHRETHEEAAESY
BEM R EERTE -

FECBE L KRB RS
AN -

o The scarcity of natural
resources due to deforestation
may lead to the increase in the
cost of material consumed in
our business operation.
BRI EGEK ) B R E
TRM IR A e S B P T &
BATAE A B R BOR Bk o

° Revenue reduces
from decreased
service capacity and
the negative impacts
of workforce
BR#58E N T BE R T
ARFNEETE
BRI D

o Operating cost

increases

BB AN

Planned to develop a risk tolerance
statement and/or system authorized
by the Board, including an
establishment of a written climate
risks management policy.
AEHTESFERENRRBAR R
NBRR/KEZS - BEHEEE
RIRE R EIRBUR -

Engaged with local or national
governments and local stakeholders
on local resilience.

L 75 B E ) B b 75 5 B SR U A
REgwFHEER -

Further enhanced the climate-
related risk policies, and included
the measurement, monitoring and
management of the climate-related
risks.
E—-TREREBENRRBOR
PREAKEERBOE BERXR
B o
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Climate-related risks description Financial Impact
KR AE B EL RS Ay 3 B g

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZZARMRIEE

Transitional Risk

Policy risk
R [\ B

o The government may restrict
the use of the traditional fuel
vehicles by the environmental
services sector and provide
the allowances to those
entities which purchase hybrid
vehicles.

B3 & i3 B ER IR AR TS B0 PT
B il 58 FR S AT R B )28 -
WHEERAB NTENE
fi4s THHEL -

Operating cost
increases for the
increased insurance
premiums paid by

the Group.
KEBMRNRRE
B INGBUEER AR
20 -

Planned to acquire more hybrid
vehicles for the business operations
to obtain the corresponding
allowances and subsidies.
FTEEEES RS NAERRE
BiEE - LWEBHEEN MBI
B -

Monitor the updates of the relevant
laws and agreements, to avoid the
unnecessary increase in cost and
expenditure due to non-compliance.
ERMEN R EMNEIIER -
BEEAERTTUENKNRRAX
o e

Legal risk
ERER

° Exposure to litigation risk. We
have to adapt the tightened
law and regulations issued by
the government due to climate
change. Our Group is exposed
to the risk of litigation once we
fail to obligate the new rules.
AR - ARRIREL -
BP9 4 7 3 R TERUAT 28 470 B BB
BRREDERIOER - —BR
BeESTHARR  BIREE®
EENEN

o Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. We may have to
spend much time on fulfilling
the ESG reporting standards
to comply with the new
regulation.

INERBERE RS o BFIA]
EEEEREBEASRHEIESGR
5 g kERMEER -

ABSFHRTEIAR B -

Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs
and increased
insurance premiums
for the Group.
PP NENEYSEN
EEREREIZ NI
R L ERCARIG N -

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and regulations
and implemented GHG emissions
calculations in advance.
ERRBAELERNEIENRN
RAETTRERBHNAAE -

EREEEEERAR
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Climate-related risks description Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks

AR AE BE L B Y A MR E AEEZEARMERRNEE
Technology risk
TR

° More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-
saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

B % B (KR - BhRERATH)
FEERRBEEARITER
o RESHILATEGHITIHK

P HEFEE -

Capital investment
in technology
development
increases.

R ERNE AR
Al -

Operating cost
increases due to the
adoption of green
technologies

KA ERMmEUE
EERCARIE M -

Examined the feasibility and efficiency
of applying the latest environmental
technologies, to raise the feasibility
and scientific efficiency of energy
saving for the business operations.
EEEBRIIRREAMA AT
M - RS FEBLEET LN AT
ESTEE S

Market risk
5 [E B

o The government and
environmental services sector
are considering climate-related
risks and opportunities,
which may lead to changes in
customers preference.

BT MR B R B EBPI EEE
B8 SR fi A B ) L P B A
EARSEHRPRITES

° Inability to attract co-financiers
and/or investors due to
uncertain risks related to the
climate.

B RUR AR 78 & N HEE [
% RS RE S IERH
R/ B EE -

Revenue decreases
for the change in
revenue mix and
sources.

WAl z=EAE R
PR B0 B TR

Operating cost
increases as abrupt
and unexpected
shifts in energy
costs.

B RE R
RERAREINE
femigm -

Fulfil the climate-related regulations
by the government.

BT U P 28 45 B SRR AR A 9 AR
Bl o

Make climate change as a high
concern in the market decisions

to show to the customers that

our Group is concerned about the
problem of climate change.
BRIEZE(CIERTISARPNEE
BEER - MEFPRALAEEHREK
DULRIERERE o

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Climate-related risks description

$R.06% A8 B8 L e Y 4

Financial Impact

BT

Steps taken to manage the risks

HEEZ SRR R E

Reputational risk

BERR

° Shifts in consumer
preferences. More customers
are considering climate-related
risks and opportunities,
which may lead to changes in
customer preference for the
more environmentally-friendly
business.

HEERINEE -F58
P& R R AR A B R K i

B FREBREPRIFAE
RIREBNEE -

o Revenue decreases

from decreased

demand for services
and the decrease in

service capacity.

Pk 75 3 OB > K AR
e TREHK
S o

° Operating costs
increases from
negative impacts

Fulfilled the social responsibility

by organizing more activities or
executing actions to demonstrate
how we place importance on climate

change.
BT Z R SR TR B R M
WA ERRIERE L - LEEITHE
Bff -

Avoided of supporting the projects or
activities which may have detrimental
effects to the climate.

on workforce e R ERIREETHFE
e Stigmatization of our business management and KB SEE) ©
sector, such as more negative planning.
stakeholder feedback. BE)HEENEE
B EBEFHEZSE - NEEFZERESE
BlanFEmEn B mREL ERAIGN -
% o
o Negative press coverage
related to support of business
activities with negative
impacts on the climate (e.g.,
GHG emissions, deforestation,
water stress).
HYHFHREEERTEN
RZFEBEENAEFER
Z(plan - REREBM - &K
LK ~ FAKER) ©
During the reporting period, the primary climate-related RIREHE @ EREREH I EHE LIERE
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were as E’\J,ﬁ\ﬁk%’i‘ﬁu—l— 5

follows:

EBEEEEERAT
2023%F R
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opportunities

RARAB B Y AR

Detailed description of climate-related

Financial Impact

k3

Resource efficiency
EiRME
° Reduce water consumption

WD IE R EFE

o Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
and cost reductions

FBEAIB IR 2 ERA

Energy source
Eb/ﬁ H{IE
Use of lower-emission fuel sources

158 R BE IR SRR

° Use of supportive policy incentives
R BEREE

° Use of new technologies

158 A 3 4l

° Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement

B FHER AR BER 2 B AN

o Returns on investment in low- emission
technology increases

(KPR U T B ¥R AN

Products and services

Em&mﬁ
Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions

1) S 1 68 FE M AR e L R 75 2

° Ability to diversify business activities

° Revenue increases through new solutions to
adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services
iR IR e B PR EE S B on & AR 7 5 S FE 7 SR eV T
R 7T BRI i a

° Participation in renewable energy programs and
adoption of energy-efficiency measures
L E T B AR 8| RERERETBE I b

° Resource substitution or diversification

BRERLZ T

ZIL R REHIEE T
Markets
5
o Access to new markets ° Revenue increases through access to new and
EAFTTS emerging markets
7 R AT ) KO BT a5 48 i s
Resilience
B

o Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings
FRMER R - Tt KB FEEIEREE N
misfhE

U Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases

HrERn EERESREN T 2EMNENIER

° Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

i35 3B ME RSB VAR R 0 3T EE am S AR 528 i as

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage climate-
related risks and opportunities. The energy consumption and
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions indicators are the key metrics
used to assess and manage relevant climate-related risks where
we consider such information is material and crucial for evaluating
the impact of our operation on global climate change during the
year. Our Group regularly tracks our energy consumption and
GHG emissions indicators to assess the effectiveness of emission
reduction initiatives, as well as set targets to contribute our effort to
have minimal impact on global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target applies and base
year from which progress is measured are described in the section
A1: “Emissions” and section A2: “Use of Resources” of this Report.
Our Group adopts absolute target to manage climate-related risks,
opportunities and performance.

SOCIAL ASPECTS
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B1. EMPLOYMENT

The Group believes people are our most important asset to
the continuing development and success of our Group. As
such, we aim to attract and motivate talents, maintain a safe
and equal working environment and promote health and
well-being of our employees. We pay special attention to its
employees’ rights and strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance, and other relevant
regulations in Hong Kong. The staff handbook covers our
Group’s standard in respect of compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare.

The Group strives to construct a diverse and inclusive
workplace where all our employees are treated with dignity
and respect. We strongly oppose to all discriminatory
behaviour against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, race, colour, disability, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, marital status or family status. The principle of
equal opportunities is applied in all employment practices,
including but not limited to recruitment, promotion
and transfer, work allocation, benefits and training and
development.
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The Group has formulated competitive remuneration
packages to retain and motivate employees in achieving
key goals of our Group. We provide remuneration for our
employees according to their qualifications, experience,
performance, job duties and service years as well as to the
market benchmark. We perform salary reviews on an annual
basis to ensure our remuneration practices are competitive
and aligned with market rates. In addition to salary, we
provide mandatory provident fund, allowances, required
social security benefits, medical benefits and variable
incentive-based remuneration such as discretionary bonus to
our employees. Employees are also entitled to various types
of leave including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave
and paternity leave.

The Group acknowledges the importance of work-life balance
and strives to maintain a supportive and relaxing working
environment for our employees. We organise activities (when
appropriate) for employees to relax and to strengthen their
sense of belonging. In addition to those specified in the
Employment Ordinance, we provide paid or partially paid
leave and support services or activities for our employees to
handle urgent personal or family matters. We also provide
family care and supports to our employees and/or their family
members to bring a positive impact on their family life.

We are committed to building a pleasant working
environment to enhance the happiness of our employees.
Our principal subsidiary, Hong Kong Finance has received
the “Happy Company” 2018 logo issued by the Promoting
Happiness Index Foundation and the Hong Kong Productivity
Council as an encouragement for our commitment to create
a happy workplace for our employees.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had
significant impact on our Group relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare. Any changes of employment
terms will be notified to staff and agreed in writing to protect
the lawful rights and interests of all employees.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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As at 31 March 2023, the employee compositions (in R2023F3H31H » ZIER| - EBE
percentage) by gender, employee category, age group, A - FHER - E - EFE
geographical region, employment category and employment Rk EFBENXE S 2 EEHAKIBR
mode were as follows: (ZBEDLLFE)WT -

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANALEE

Employee compositions 2023 2022
EEARER 2023F 2022%F
By gender
Qe E-Bs)
o Male 49% 51%
S
o Female 51% 49%
g
By age group
RERERE D
o Age 30 or below 21% 14%
30BE LA T
o Age 31-40 32% 44%
315X E 408X
o Age 41-50 21% 16%
MR E508%
. Age 51 or above 26% 26%
5153 A
By geographical region
&t B8 5
o Hong Kong 100% 100%
6
By employment category
REBERNE S
° Senior management 21% 21%
mREEE
° Middle management 17% 28%
RAREIRE
o General staff 62% 51%
LimES
By employment mode
REREXE S
o Full-time staff 100% 100%
PHET
° Part-time staff - -
FRBET
EREEEEERAT
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B2.

The employee turnover rates by gender, age group and
geographical region at the end of the reporting period were

as follows:

RBER - RIER - FlRER MR 2R
BRALEMT :

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HLEE

Turnover rates (%) 2023 2022
WK = (%) 20234 20224
By gender
BRI &S
° Male 31% 14%
XL
o Female 40% 16%
g
By age group
RERERE S
o 30 years old or below 13% 20%
30BRE LA T
o 31-40 years old 76% 12%
315 E405%
o 41-50 years old 11% 31%
AR E508%
o 51 years old or above 9% 9%
51 A
Overall 36% 15%
At
HEALTH AND SAFETY B2. BREHEZZE

The Group takes into consideration every precaution to
establish a healthy and safe working environment for its
employees. We place the highest priority on securing
the health and safety of all employees. In order to ensure
occupational health and safety of our employees, we strictly
comply with the rules and guidelines stipulated in the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance by the Labour
Department in Hong Kong and any other applicable laws and

regulations.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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B3.

Besides, with the aim to provide and maintain a safe and
healthy working environment for employees, the Group
implements “Occupational Safety and Health Policy”
to protect them from work-related injury. We support a
culture that enhances the health and safety awareness
of our employees in order to minimise the risk of work-
related injury. We also provide medical benefits for our
employees and establish work arrangement for typhoon
and rainstorm warning. Besides, we place great emphasis
on the employees’ mental wellness. We provide information
and services regarding stress management and mental
wellness counselling for our employees to relieve stress and
to promote mental wellness.

During the reporting period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
had significant impact on our Group in providing a safe and
healthy working environment.

During the reporting period, there was no employee (2021:
nil, 2022: nil) injured and no lost day (2021: nil, 2022: nil) due
to work-related injuries. There was no fatality case (2021:
nil, 2022: nil) during the year. The Group will continue to
improve the safety management system in order to protect
employees’ health and safety in the workplace.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group believes that the knowledge and skills of our
employees are vital to our continued business growth
and success. We have established a “Staff Training and
Development Policy” to support our employees in the
performance of their designated roles and help them to fulfil
their potential during the course of their employment. We
provide diversified on-the-job trainings for our employees and
continue to improve the training system in order to enhance
their requisite knowledge and skills in discharging their
duties.

B3.

SESh - AEEFTIRELZE RE
FHE| UREEERXTHE
BRARERHMEF L 2@EL
THERE - BMERRESERREE
HEze2EHcXlt BEREILS
Bk - HAMSEERHERE
Mo UHEREMRRES 2T
TEZHE « WO HPIFFFEGRESR
DIERE - HMARERMERE
HNER FLE R RE R B MR
% ASTERE DLW (e O IRRER -

RBEHRAR - AEEL ALK
SERHZE2EFENTIFREESE
BEAFENERZIRZRNTER
1T/ e

RBEPR - TEEERAISE
(20214 : 8 > 20224 : )R
ETIERMERMBARXE(2021
F 2022 1 £E) c RERL
ML T4 (20214F & - 2022
FoE)  AEEBEETELS
EERE  RERESIIESFANRE
RREE -

BRRIEI
AEBRE  BEZAB RS

Z - RMEHIEIE THIIRER
HER] XFHEEXNZEHEET
EEBBEYHOHREEEE - &
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HtEhERRS

During the reporting period, the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employment category was as follows:

EHIA - RIERI R IERERE
DZEIEEBDLLLIT

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HLEE

Percentage of employees trained 2023 2022
TIEEBDLE 20234 20224
By gender
RER 8D
° Male 76% 29%
S
° Female 89% 26%
M
By employee category
RERERE D
° Senior management 45% 11%
BRERE
° Middle management - -
RRERRE
o General staff 100% 53%
LTiRESR
Overall 82% 28%
st

The detailed breakdown for employees trained in each of the
gender and employment category and the average training
hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category was as follows:

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ASIALEE
Average training hours Percentage of employee
(hours/employee) trained (%)
35 3% 31 R ZilEE
N2 1)) HA (%)
Training 2023 2022 2023 2022
23 20234 20224 20234 2022%F
By gender
gl E-B)
° Male 1.3 0.6 46% 55%
S
° Female 0.4 0.5 54% 45%
Z
By employment category
RERERE S
o Senior management 0.7 0.2 14% 9%
ERERE
° Middle management - - - -
RRERE
° General staff 1.2 1.1 86% 91%
LiRER
LABOUR STANDARDS B4. HIHE
The Group respects the human rights of employees, and is AREBEREREAE  WRAURY

strongly against the employment of child labour and forced
labour. We strictly emphasise on the prohibition of engaging
child labour and forced labour. Adhering to the Employment
Ordinance and the Employment of Children Regulations in
Hong Kong, we strictly prohibit recruitment of individuals
under the age of 15. According to our “Human Resources
Policy Guidelines”, job applicants are required to present their
identity documents for age verification during recruitment
process.

The Group is committed to respecting the freedom of
employees and prohibiting all forms of forced labour. All work
should be performed on a voluntary basis and the working
hours are regulated in the staff handbook.

During the reporting period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to
recruitment of child labour or forced labour practices.

BREIRSEHET - HAHRE
FIMERET KRS T - Hif1E
BEB(REEID M(ERRER
) - BRERARMIGERZIAL
RBEIANERBRES!] - KBE
/,\F%Hqﬂ&qﬂﬁj’\ﬁﬁrfﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁl
HARZE

rEBBRNEEREZAH AHE
=R z@F|5T - FRETE
Y RBERERT - M TERERIZE
BTFMRE -

RBEIA - AEE LT HBEMR
AETEREAEIS®RGIS I
MHELERRERZIBER
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OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

B6.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a financial services provider, the Group mainly works with
third party services providers which provide services such
as information technology services, property management
services, advertising service and legal and consulting
services. We also work with suppliers that supply office
equipment, printing and stationery. During the primary
engagement process, we select more than one services
provider for comparison purpose and to ensure fair selection.
With the implementation of our “Environmental Procurement
Policy”, we strive to minimise our impacts on the environment
by supporting and giving priority to purchase recycled and
environmental-friendly products.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group regards service quality as a key competitive
advantage of its business. We continue to provide high
quality services in order to enhance customer satisfaction.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Money Lenders Ordinance,
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Trade Description
Ordinance and the Copyright Ordinance in Hong Kong.
During the reporting period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance regarding product responsibility.

Quality Management

The Group has implemented a “Quality Management Policy”
to ensure the continual delivery of high-quality services to our
customers. We continuously provide value-added features on
our websites, such as mortgage calculator, online property
valuation and online loan application, aiming to offer excellent
customer experience and surpass customers’ expectations
where possible.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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The Group believes the opinions from customers can drive
our continuous improvement and are essential to our pursuit
for excellence. We welcome the opinions from customers by
establishing various communication channels with customers,
such as customer service hotline, email, WhatsApp, WeChat
and Facebook. We have also established a customer service
survey form on our website to understand the needs of our
customers and improve our service quality.

Complaint Handlling

The Group adheres to stringent customer compliant
operational procedures as stipulated in “Customer Complaint
Handling System” to ensure the customers’ opinions
are handled and responded. All customers’ complaints
are considered and carefully followed up by responsible
departments within a reasonable timeframe. Relevant
investigation is carried out and improvement measure is
implemented to improve the service quality and customer
experience. During the reporting period, no complaint
case (2022: nil) related to the money lending business was
received. The Group believes that complaints are valuable
opportunities to obtain feedback from customers so as to
identify the need for quality and policy improvements.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy

The Group acknowledges that data privacy is a critical issue
for financial services industry and we place great importance
on the data protection of our customers. We adhere to
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong and
take high precaution in ensuring data confidentiality to
avoid misuse or leakage of personal data. The confidential
personal data is handled with due care and kept in a locked
cabinet. We have incorporated our requirements into staff
handbook and requires employees to abide by the guidance
on prohibiting any unauthorised disclosure of confidential
information. In addition, we have included the purpose of
personal data collection in the loan application form to ensure
our customers are aware of it.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to upholding the high standards
of business ethics and integrity in the conduct of our
Group’s business and operation. We strictly comply with all
applicable laws and regulations, including the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. Our standards towards
anti-corruption and business ethics, incorporated into the
staff handbook, are communicated and reinforced to our
employees. Employees shall not solicit or accept any forms
of bribing benefits, including banquets, cash, gifts, rebates
and commissions. If any case of suspected corruption or
other criminal offence is discovered, it will be reported to
the Independent Commission Against Corruption or other
relevant authorities.

The Group aims to avoid being directly or indirectly involved
in corrupt practices. Hence, we have established a “Guideline
on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing”,
which covers procedures for customer due diligence and
reporting suspicious transaction, to prevent and detect any
money laundering and terrorist financing.

Customer Due Diligence

Prior to accepting customers’ loan application, the Group
carries out Know-Your-Client procedures to verify the
identity of customers and assess the risks associated with
the customers by using documents, data and information
obtained from reliable and independent sources, such as
government and public authorities. We verify the identity of
individual customers by inspecting their Hong Kong Identity
Cards and proofs of residential address. For corporate
customers, we verify their identity by inspecting their
Certificates of Incorporation and/or Business Registration
Certificates.

In addition, the Group conducts checking on land register to
verify the ownership of the properties and ascertain whether
the properties are under any charges. For body corporate
customers, we enquire the ownership structures of the body
corporate. We do not allow anonymous customer account to
be set up, and loan repayments from customers are mainly
made by cheques or bank direct transfer with their own bank
accounts and payable to us or our solicitors.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Suspicious Transactions Reporting

Upon any suspected or confirmed case of property
representing the proceeds of crime or terrorist property,
employees are required to immediately report to the Group’s
top management in accordance with our internal guideline.
The Group will promptly report the suspicious transactions to
the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit3 using the standard form
or e-channel “STREAMS”.

The Group’s “Complaints Reporting and Whistleblower
Protection System” encourages and enables employees
to report on observed and suspected non-compliance and
questionable practices. The Group has also established a
confidentiality mechanism to protect whistleblowers against
intimidation and reprisals.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. There was no legal
case regarding corruption practices brought against our
Group during the reporting period.
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The Group organised training sessions of anti-corruption to
employees provided by The Association of Financing Industry
Practitioners. At the end of the reporting period, the number
of employees received anti-corruption training and the
training hours by employment category were as follows:

ARECAEERRARMETRE
XBHeRE I RESEI - R
EHR RERERISSERE
SR B B AR Z IS

s

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ABIHLEE

Anti-corruption training 2023 2022
RES 20234 20224
Number of employees received training
ZIEEBAE
o Board of directors 2 -
Exg
o Senior management 3 1
aREREE
° Middle management - -
RRERRE
o General staff 32 12
LiEER
Total employees 37 13
EEBAH
Number of training hours
FZ IR
o Board of directors 3.0 -
Exg
° Senior management 4.5 1.5
SREEE
° Middle management - -
RRERRE
o General staff 48.0 19.5
LiEER
Total training hours 55.5 21.0
FHIBREE
Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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COMMUNITY HE
B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT B8. #HE®RE

As a socially responsible corporate citizen, the Group strives
to contribute back to the society and bring a positive impact
on the community. A “Community Involvement Policy” is in
place to encourage and support community development
initiatives. Our principal subsidiary, HK Finance, has been
awarded the “Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for six consecutive years in
recognition of our contribution to society and serving of the
community by donating to different institutions.

In addition, the Group encourages its employees to
dedicate their time and skills to participate in different
voluntary activities and be aware of community needs. We
also encourage our employees, customers and business
partners to make donations in supporting the sustainable
development of the community.

During the reporting period, the Group made donations to
various charities or foundations. The donation amount in HK
dollar is below:
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Name of Charity/Foundation (in English) Name of Charity/Foundation (in Chinese) HK$
ZEWE HELEEBEY ZEWE HegEB (X BT
The Community Chest of Hong Kong BEBREmE 10,000

Yan Tak Charity Fund Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Koung Nam, aged 67, is our executive Director who was
appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also acting as a director
of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is the brother of Mr. Chan
Kwong Yin William and one of the founders of our Group. Mr. Chan is
also the father of Ms. Chan Siu Ching. He has extensive experience in
money lending business and is responsible for the strategic planning and
overall development of our Group.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
Shares and underlying Shares or any other associated corporation” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or short positions in Shares and
underlying Shares” respectively.

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, aged 58, is our executive Director
who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Chan is also acting as a
director of various subsidiaries of our Company and is the Chairman of
the Board. Mr. Chan is the brother of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and one
of the founders of our Group. He has extensive experience in money
lending business and is responsible for overseeing our Group’s business
operation and development as well as monitoring our Group’s corporate
strategy and administration. He also supervises the formulation of our
Group’s marketing strategy and the execution of the relevant marketing
programs.

Mr. Chan is one of the substantial Shareholders (as defined under the
Listing Rules). He owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin Ching
Holdings which is one of the substantial Shareholders. Details of his
interest in the Shares and underlying Shares have been disclosed in the
section headed “Report of the Directors” under the sub-sections headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
Shares and underlying Shares or any other associated corporation” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or short positions in Shares and
underlying Shares” respectively.

Mr. Tse Pui To, aged 57, is our executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Tse
joined our Group in 2002 and is responsible for managing our Group’s
business operation with focus on our loan sales, aftersales activities and
other administrative functions. Prior to joining our Group, he worked
as and held senior positions in various financial institutions. Mr. Tse
possesses extensive experience in corporate finance activities and
business promotions.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEE

Ms. Chan Siu Ching, aged 41, is our executive Director who was
appointed to the Board on 1 November 2022. Ms. Chan joined our
Group in 2016 and is mainly responsible for the overall business
development of the Group’s money lending business. Prior to joining our
Group, she acted as the managing director of another money lending
company in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Koung
Nam.

Ms. Chan obtained a degree of bachelor of management in tourism
and hospitality from University of Technology, Sydney. She has also
completed a programme in executive master of business administration
and has obtained a degree of master of business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry, aged 51, is our independent non-executive
Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Currently Mr. Chu
is an independent non-executive director of each of Ten Pao Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1979) and AB Builders Group Limited
(stock code: 1615), the shares of these two companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also a managing director of
Halcyon Capital Limited which specialises in initial public offerings and
corporate advisory in mergers and acquisitions.

Mr. Chu possesses solid experience in corporate finance and auditing.
He has worked for an international accounting firm and other corporate
finance departments of listed financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chu graduated from The University of Western Ontario in Canada
with a bachelor of arts degree, and from The University of Hull in the
United Kingdom with a master of business administration (investment
and finance) degree. He also obtained a diploma in accounting from the
School of Business and Economics of the Wilfrid Laurier University in
Canada. Mr. Chu is a member of HKICPA.

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong, aged 65, is our independent non-executive
Director who was appointed to the Board in 2013. Mr. Cheung is also a
practicing solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1993. Currently
he is a partner of S. H. Chan & Co., a solicitors’ firm in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of
Hong Kong and a bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
He was thereafter awarded the postgraduate certificate in laws by the
University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wong Kai Man, aged 56, is our independent non-executive
Director who was appointed to the Board on 1 November 2022. Mr.
Wong is currently a managing director, chief executive officer and
company secretary of Mariner Corporation Limited, a company listed on
the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) (stock code: MCX) in Australia.

He has obtained a master of business administration from the Murdoch
University in Australia. He has solid experience in global investment
banking, corporate finance and executive management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hui Chun Ho Eric, aged 48, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of our Group. Mr. Hui joined our Group in 2012 and
is responsible for the overall financial accounting and reporting, taxation,
corporate finance and corporate governance matters of our Group.

Mr. Hui possesses solid experience in auditing, financial accounting and
reporting, taxation, corporate governance and corporate finance matters.
Prior to joining our Group, he worked for an international accounting
firm and held several senior positions in other listed companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Hui is a fellow member of both The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and HKICPA, and an associate of The Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. He obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a master of business
administration with distinction from The University of Manchester, United
Kingdom.

Ms. Wong Sze, aged 37, is the Managing Director — Head of Personal
Loan of our Group. Ms. Wong joined our Group in 2017 and is
responsible for managing, developing and administering our Group’s
operation in personal loan business.

Ms. Wong possesses extensive experience in money lending industry, its
development and administration. Prior to joining our Group, she worked
for and held a senior position in a well-known money lending company in
Hong Kong.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor of arts degree with first class honours
in social policy and administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

Mr. Chan Siu Fai, aged 60, is the Senior Mortgage Sales Manager of
our Group. Mr. Chan joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for
administering the mortgage loan sales and credit assessment of our
Group’s lending business.

Mr. Choi Tak On Jobby, aged 54, is the Senior Mortgage Sales
Manager of our Group. Mr. Choi joined our Group in 2005 and is
responsible for administering the mortgage loan sales and credit
assessment of our Group’s lending business.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEeWE

Our Directors are pleased to present the report of the Directors together
with the audited financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of our Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of our subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of our
Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out
in the “Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income”.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Tuesday, 5 September 2023. The notice of
AGM, which constitutes part of the circular to the Shareholders, will be
published on the websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange
respectively and despatched to our Shareholders together with our
Company’s 2023 annual report in due course.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK1.3 cents per Share for the six months ended
30 September 2022 had been paid to our Shareholders on 17 January
2023. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.3 cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2023, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the AGM. The proposed final dividend will be
paid on Friday, 6 October 2023.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods, and no transfers of shares of the Company will be
effected during such periods:

(i) from Thursday, 31 August 2023 to Tuesday, 5 September 2023,
both days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of ordinary shares of
the Company, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Union Registrars Limited (the
“Branch Share Registrar”), at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday,
30 August 2023; and
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(i)  from Tuesday, 12 September 2023 to Thursday, 14 September
2023, both days inclusive, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2023. In order to determine entitlements to
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of ordinary shares of the
Company, duly accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Branch Share Registrar at the address set
out above for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 11
September 2023.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by our Group during the year
amounted to HK$59,000 (2022: HK$888,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of our business review as at 31 March 2023 are set out in the
preceding section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of our principal properties held for investment purposes are set
out in the section headed “Schedule of Investment Properties”.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the share issued in the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out
in Note 27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of our Company at 31 March 2023, calculated
under the legislation applicable in Company’s place of incorporation,
amounted to HK$382,270,000 (2022: HK$376,146,000) before the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in this section headed
“Share Option Scheme”. No share options were granted or outstanding
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige our Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group for
the last five financial years is set out section headed “Five-year Financial
Summary”.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
those participants who made contributions to our Group with a view to
motivating them and/or attracting and retaining them for the long term
growth of our Group. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any Director (whether
executive or non-executive or independent non-executive), employee
(whether full time or part time), officer, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to our Group or any entity
in which our Company or any subsidiary holds any interest whom the
Board determines on the basis of contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of our Group.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (a)
the closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of an
option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a business date; (b) the average
closing price of the shares of our Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of our
Company.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of an option.
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The total number of shares of our Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (exclusive of options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of our Company in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshment by the Shareholders.

Our Company may seek approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit set out hereinabove such that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of our Company under the limit as refreshed shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval
to refresh such limit. Share options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such limit as refreshed.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of shares
as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No option may
be granted under this Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of our Company if it would result in the above-mentioned 30%
limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued shares for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, which period may commence on
a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is made
but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. No
further options may be granted more than 10 years after 4 September
2018.
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Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by
the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 4 September 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no option was granted or agreed
to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March
2023, there were no outstanding share options.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of our Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Koung Nam

Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William (Chairman)

Mr. Tse Pui To (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Chan Siu Ching (appointed on 1 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond (resigned on 1 November 2022)
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry

Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong

Mr. Wong Kai Man (appointed on 1 November 2022)

Pursuant to the Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Ms. Chan
Siu Ching and Mr. Wong Kai Man, who were appointed as an executive
Director and an independent non-executive Director respectively on 1
November 2022, shall hold office until the date of the AGM respectively.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one third of the directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Any Director appointed by the Board
pursuant to Article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong (independent non-
executive Director) will retire at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Our Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
March 2023 and up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than three (3) months’ prior
notice in writing or otherwise in accordance with the service agreement.
Each of the executive Directors will receive a monthly salary subject
to annual review by the Board and the remuneration committee of the
Board. Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a discretionary
bonus as may be determined by the Board and the remuneration
committee of the Board after each completed year of service provided
that the aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses payable in each
financial year to all executive Directors shall not exceed five per cent
of the audited consolidated net profit attributable to owners of our
Company but before extraordinary or exceptional items of the relevant
financial year. Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a
guaranteed bonus which is equivalent to one-month salary.

Our Group has provided quarters located in Hong Kong to executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin
William as part of the remuneration of their directorships in our Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a service
agreement with our Company for an initial term of two years and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by not less than three (3) months’
prior notice in writing or otherwise in accordance with the relevant service
agreement. The annual fee payable by our Company to each of the
independent non-executive Directors is an aggregate amount according
to the service agreement.
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Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong have served as
independent non-executive Directors for more than nine years and the
Nomination Committee and the Board have reviewed and assessed
their independence pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the CG Code.
Given that (@) Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
meet the independence factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and have provided written confirmation of independence to the
Company; (b) they do not have any interest in the business activities of
the Group, nor any relationships which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment; and (c) they continue to demonstrate the
attributes of independent non-executive director to be able to exercise
their independent professional judgment and draw upon their extensive
knowledge, expertise and experience and there is no evidence that
their tenure has had any impact on their independence, the Board is of
the opinion that Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong
remain independent notwithstanding the length of their service. In
addition, taking into account their in-depth knowledge in the Group’s
business together with their professional knowledge and expertise
and general business acumen, the Board considers that Mr. Chu Yat
Pang Terry and Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong should be re-elected as the
Company’s independent non-executive Directors to continue making
contributions to the Company.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service agreement with period unexpired with our Company which is
not determinable by our Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Option Scheme above, at no time
during the year was our Company, nor any of our subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or our parent company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of our Company or any other body corporate; and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of our Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO OUR COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which our Company, any
of our subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or our parent company was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, no Directors have interests in any business
which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to compete with the
business of our Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director of our Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of our Company from and against any liability incurred
by them or any one of them as holder of any such office or appointment
to a third party.

A permitted indemnity provision is in force as at the date of this report
and was in force throughout the year for the benefit of all the Directors
pursuant to the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance arranged by our
Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
in the preceding section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and/or short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of our Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of our Company and our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were (i)
recorded in the register kept by our Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO; or (i) notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code,
were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)
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Number of Shares and

underlying Shares held ('000)

FrsRH RAEABRGEE (TR)

Total
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Interest in issued share

Shares/ Beneficial a controlled capital of

Name of Directors Equity derivatives owner corporation the Company)

#et

87 REEE (BEAFSH

EEfE RESTETR BmBEEA EEER TRAZBDE)

Chan Koung Nam Ordinary shares - 300,000 300,000

BRYtE BB (Note Fff3) (72.29%)

Chan Kwong Yin William Ordinary shares 5,760 300,000 305,760

BRAE B (Note P &) (73.68%)
Note: Bz -

These shares of the Company are held by Tin Ching Holdings. Each of Mr. Chan Koung
Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William owns 50% of the issued share capital of Tin
Ching Holdings. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, both Mr. Chan Koung
Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William are deemed to be interested in all the shares of
the Company in which Tin Ching Holdings is interested or deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of our Directors or
the chief executive of the Company had registered any interest or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than a director or chief executive of our Company), who
had interests and/or short positions in the Shares or the underlying
Shares of our Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of Shares and

underlying Shares held (’000)

FriERARABRROEE (FR)
Total
(% of the
Interest in issued share
Name of substantial Shares/ Beneficial a controlled capital of
shareholders Equity derivatives owner corporation the Company)
st
FERRK B3, REZEE (AR AFREHR
=t IRESTET R BESBERA ZEER TRAZBDL)
Tin Ching Holdings Ordinary Shares 300,000 - 300,000
PNty i (72.29%)
Chan Koung Nam Ordinary Shares - 300,000 300,000
BRtEE B (72.29%)
Chan Kwong Yin William Ordinary Shares 5,760 300,000 305,760
=) AR (73.68%)
Head and Shoulders Global Ordinary Shares 20,772 - 20,772
Investment Fund SPC — HS SRl (5.01%)
Powered Alpha Segregated
Portfolio
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, there was no other & EXFTIRFEEIN - 2023438310 - #iE

person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administrative of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of our Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, our top five customers (as determined by interest
income generated) accounted for approximately 10.8% (2022: 7.6%)
of our total revenue, and our single largest customer accounted for
approximately 3.2% (2022: 2.2%) of our total revenue.

As at the year end, the largest and top five customers (as determined
by loan receivable balance) of the total gross loan receivables balance
accounted for 3.1% (2022: 2.1%) and 13.5% (2022: 8.3%) respectively.

All of our top five customers were third parties independent to our
Company and its connected person(s) or associate(s). To the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, none of our Group,
our Directors, members of our senior management, and their respective
associates and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued
Shares, had any interest in or financial or business relationship with any
of our Group’s top five customers during the year ended 31 March 2023.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of our Controlling Shareholders, namely Tin Ching Holdings, Mr.
Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William, has entered into a
Deed of Non-competition in favour of our Company, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally,
undertakes and covenants with each of our Company and our
subsidiaries that as long as the Shares remain so listed on the Stock
Exchange and he/it and his/its associates, individually or collectively with
any other Controlling Shareholder(s) is, directly or indirectly, interested
in 30% or more of the Shares in issue, or is otherwise regarded as a
Controlling Shareholder (as that term is defined under the Listing Rules
from time to time) of our Company, each of the Controlling Shareholders
shall not, and shall procure that none of his/its associated (excluding any
members of our Group) shall, among others:

(@ directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition with the
existing business activity and any business activities undertaken by
our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”) which
any member of our Group may undertake in the future in Hong
Kong except for the holding of not more than 5% shareholding
interests in any listed company in Hong Kong;

(b)  take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an interference
with or a disruption to the Restricted Business including, but not
limited to, solicitation of the customers, suppliers or staff of our
Group; and
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(c) exploit his/its knowledge or information obtained from our Group to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the business carried on by our
Group from time to time.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the Controlling
Shareholders on compliance with each of their respective undertakings
under the Deeds of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders and
confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is fully complied with and
duly enforced during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company. Other than the transaction relating
to the advertising and marketing expenses paid to a joint venture, the
other related party transactions constituted connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules but are
exempted from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

HK Finance (as borrower), our Company (as guarantor) and Tin Ching
Industrial (as lender) have entered into the loan agreement, pursuant
to which Tin Ching Industrial agreed to provide the loan facility of up
to HK$200,000,000 to HK Finance for the money lending business of
our Group at an interest rate of 1% per annum over the HK$ prime rate
quoted by DBS (Hong Kong) Limited for a term subject to review by Tin
Ching Industrial at any time but in any event no later than one year after
the date of the loan agreement.

As Tin Ching Industrial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tin Ching
Holdings which is the substantial Shareholder of our Company and
is a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules), the loan
agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction for providing
financial assistance to our Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, as the loan facility is provided by Tin Ching Industrial
for our Group’s and Shareholders’ benefits, and on normal or better
commercial terms to our Company where no security over our Group’s
assets is granted in respect of the loan facility, the loan agreement
as continuing connected transaction is fully exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEeWE

Our Directors confirms that our Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
connected transactions to which our Company was a party during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to our Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of its issued shares in the Stock Exchange throughout the
year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of our Company have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kwong Yin William
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR R T

i
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HONG KONG FINANCE GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Finance Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 99 to 179, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2023;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 BA RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit relates to impairment

assessment of loans and interest receivables.

FREFTER
BRETFASRERMANERHE - RS
HBAMEAVBERENBAR/EZENSE
He GLERETERMBABRBEAVBR
KEHABRRETREN - BHMTEHE
LEFREERNER -

BARBATENNEREATATENE
WER KB 2 BEFE

Key Audit Matter
BERETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEEBRETEE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables

FEWR BT RS R (B

Refer to Note 2.8.4, Note 3.1(b), Note 4(a), Note 22 and
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RAR A M HEME2.8.4 - BIzE3.1(b) * Miztd(a) - B
FT22 R A EE23 o

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s net loans and
interest receivables amounted to HK$872,271,000 and
HK$22,903,000, respectively.

M2023F3A31H + EBEXBZEWERKFBFES
#%872,271,0007% 7T £ 22,903,000/ 7T, ©

We assessed management’s assessment of provision for
impairment of loans and interest receivables by performing
the following procedures:

BB BINIT T HIRR Fr AT 14 B 12 FE st B & SR N BOR(E
BB 271

o understood, evaluated and validated the key controls
over the impairment assessment of loan and interest
receivables, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
associated;

THE - RTAE AR R E SRR BORE BT 8 B
g & E EIER T AR E R E AR A
FEfEERENER - ATEERKRONERR

o evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of provision for loss allowance to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process by
comparing the expected credit losses in prior year to
the actual collection performance in current year;
B HRBRRENGERET TG BB
RE—FENRAFEERLXEAFEERDREK
I AEEREMETREN AL

o carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test
the existence and accuracy of the aging of loans
and interest receivables applied in the Expected
Credit Loss (“ECL”) model and as at the consolidated
statement of financial position date;
REAREGFEERAEN 2 BRNER R ERER
SUBIRAR B RE RS & REERITHE
BOBIRRT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR R T

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HREBETEE®

Key Audit Matter
BERETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWEFTNAEEBRETEE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
(Continued)
JEWE KR F S (B VA (4E)

Management assessed the provision for impairment of
loans and interest receivables based on the ECL model.
In developing the loss allowance of loans and interest
receivables, management use judgement in making
assumptions about the probability of default and loss given
default with reference to the historical delinquency ratio of
loans portfolio, collateral values used in the ECL model,
probability of default and current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors.

EREENEFEEBAEXNGEEKER R ERE
BE - EREEBKERLNENBERBER  BEEK
PEGHHEGHNBABALE B EEBREXFRA
KFRERE BAOREUREBELELSERZNEEAR
AIEMER  CAABHEAORERBAOBRERELR

We focused on this area because the carrying value
of loans and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements and management’s
impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
require the use of significant judgments and estimates.
HME IR SR REAREWERKRFEZ REEYH
FAMBHREAMEEBEN  MERBYHEKERKLF
BB R (4 T E A EARHE KRG -

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

94

o checked the valuation methodology and approach
adopted by management in the ECL assessment;
BREBERERB EERRTERAZHETER
AR

° evaluated and challenged the appropriateness of the
key assumptions, such as historical delinquency ratio
of loan portfolio, collateral values used in the ECL
model, probability of default and current and forward-
looking information with reference to the historical
data and market economic data; and
AEREREIEREESEAE  HIN2EREHE
EMBRESBENEFASHNBERRLE - BT
CERAEAMABEARER BAREURRAE
RATEMER &

o re-performed management’s calculation of loss

allowance under ECL model which grouped together
all the receivables with similar risk characteristics
based on the probability of default, exposure at
default, loss given default, forward-looking information
and other significant factors taken into account in
estimating the ECL allowance.
BN EEREHEA EERREABR T ZERE
e BRBEOKE  ENRER  BOBKXKE A
EMERNARMGEFEFEERARBREZ R 2 HA
BARRZREMAERGERBRFEEM B IEE
17 e

Based on the procedures described above, we considered
management’s judgments and estimates applied in the
impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
were supportable by management provided evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 N % BRI R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR R T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T8 N % BRI R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR R T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A EEBRAR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 £ 2023538315 I F /&

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHBT FHET
Revenue W zs 6 160,974 153,488
Other income HAWA 6 3,277 1,394
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of EB{LIRE W E 2 AFE
investment properties (&) Mz 17 (8,130) 8,980
Provision for impairment and write-off of & U & 35018 8% % I il 8
loans receivable, net it 7 (5,758) (6,513)
Administrative expenses THRAX 8 (57,226) (53,060)
Operating profit FeE— i 93,137 104,289
Finance costs BB KA 11 (20,870) (21,109)
Share of loss of a joint venture DhEERRZEER 21 (42) -
Profit before income tax Br AT B8 AT A 72,225 83,180
Income tax expense s RiF = 12 (13,340) (12,630)
Profit and total comprehensive AAREE AES
income for the year attributable to EEBFREZEB AL
owners of the Company 58,885 70,550
Earnings per share for profit EATEEAELERF 2
attributable to owners of BRER
the Company
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) - EAR R #5E (Bl 13 14.2 17.0
Dividends Bz B 14 10,790 10,790

The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE BRI R

As at 31 March 2023 7202393 A31H

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 16 69,652 72,223
Investment properties REYHE 17 105,200 113,330
Financial asset at fair value through BATETAEREZ
profit or loss TREE 20 800 800
Loans receivable e E X 22 334,659 308,660
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEE 32 1,561 1,135
Investment in a joint venture BERN—HEERNA] 21 13,958 =
Total non-current assets ERBEEHT 525,830 496,148
Current assets REBEE
Loans receivable FEUE K 22 537,612 621,809
Interest receivables JEWA B, 23 22,903 21,776
Repossessed assets e &E 24 7,126 7,248
Prepayments, deposits and FERHE - EZE& Rk
other receivables H i E Y RIE 25 2,860 2,028
Tax recoverable AU BB = 3,184
Cash and cash equivalents BeKREEFEEY 26 29,875 24,882
Total current assets B EEHATE 600,376 680,927
Total assets BEHAKE 1,126,206 1,177,075
Equity s
Equity attributable to the owners of &2QF#HE AEGER
the Company
Share capital [N 27 4,150 4,150
Reserves ] 28 780,565 732,470
Total equity EREE 784,715 736,620

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARa RS IR  aR

As at 31 March 2023 7202393 A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE THxT FET
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Other borrowings H B 30 867 915
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHREaE 32 3,616 3,301
Total non-current liabilites FrmAfmes 0 4483 4216
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payable and accruals H AT RIE M EETE A 29 8,757 8,761
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary EN—HRREMNBATHIE  34() 96,467 109,740
Tax payable FET R IE 2,549 1,952
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBIER 30 229,235 292,875
Bonds B 31 - 22,911
Total current liabilities | repRfesR 337,008 436,239
Total liabilities BEHAE 341,491 440,455
Total equity and liabilities EzkEEEE 1,126,206 1,177,075
Net current assets RBEETE 263,368 244,688
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABEE 789,198 740,836

The above consolidated statements of financial position should be read — _F #lt 4R & B4 7 AR St 3% & 328 [B) B& B P 5 — BB
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 179 were  $99E 1798 Z 4348 Pk KR M E F 212023
approved by the Board of Director on 28 June 2023 and signed on its F6828A#t/E * WHU TEEFRERESE ¢
behalf by:

On behalf of the Board RRESZE
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William Mr. Chan Koung Nam
BRAEBELE BRER %
Chairman Executive director
FE HITEE

EREEEEERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARBEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 £ 2023538315 I F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARHEE AR
Share
Share Share Capital option  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total

Rx  BRHEE E45RE BRERE REEN @it
Note ~ HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
fiti Thn TER Tén ThR TER Tén

Balance at 31 March 2021 R202153A318 2 &8 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 469,025 676,860

Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HERAAE = a = 70,550 70,550

Transactions with owners BREEAZRS

Dividends relating to 2021 BHE0NERE 14 = = = = (5,395) (5,395)

Dividends relating to 2022 AE2022F 7 IR 8 14 = - - - (5,395) (5,395)
Total transactions with owners, HEBAZR 4T

recognised directly in equity BEERNERED = = = - (10,7900  (10,790)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R202253A31 A 2 8 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 528,785 736,620
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2022E3731 8 2 &8 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 528,785 736,620
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HERAAE = = = - 58,885 58,885
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS

Dividends relating to 2022 BE02F RS 14 = = = = (5,395) (5,395)

Dividends relating to 2023 BE023F 2R E 14 = = = = (5,395) (5,395)
Total transactions with owners, BEBAZRA4E

recognised directly in equity BEERNERED > = = = (10,790)  (10,790)
Balance at 31 March 2023 R20235F3A31 A 2 8 4,150 103,665 100,020 - 576,880 784,715

The above consolidated statements of changes in equity should be read | it 47 & # %5 % Bh 3% FE 38 [5) B8 B BT ok — GF B4
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=IAN AN s =
%/\ = Eﬁimbi

For the year ended 31 March 2023 £ 2023538315 I F /&

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEKsHERE
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE 15(a) 160,498 8,516
Interest paid ERFE (20,781) (20,009)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEABREH (9,670) (22,362)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RS (BT )
__operating activities REF® 130,047 | (33,855)
Cash flows from investing activities REEXKRERE
Purchase of property, BEME  BELEE
plant and equipment (303) (1,128)
Purchase of investment properties BEREDHE - (28,000)
Investment in a joint venture "ER—FEE AT (14,000) =
Net cash used in investing activities BEXBHAREFE (14,303 | (29,128)
Cash flows from financing activities BEXK>RERE
Repayment of bank and BERITREMBER
other borrowings (982,507) (962,063)
Proceeds from bank and RIT R E M AR TS T
other borrowings 918,819 1,078,795
Changes in amount due to e —ER R B A A
a fellow subsidiary KIB & (13,273) (19,100)
Redemption of bonds BOES (23,000) (79,000)
Dividend paid ERIRE (10,790) (10,790)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEES (TR, FE
e ReF® ... \mo7sy 7842
Net increase/(decrease) incashand ®HERRESEEY
cash equivalents #whn (D) F 4,993 (55,141)
Cash and cash equivalents at FU2Re KRB eEEY
beginning of the year 24,882 80,023
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZRASRBESEEY
of the year 26 29,875 24,882

The above consolidated statements of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bR & R & B R IR E R BE MY BT R — BF B

EREEEEERAR
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 6 February 2013 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands. The address of
the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Tin Ching Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited

1 04 ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R & B &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEASHBEMER)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RREER)

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) for this financial year and the comparative
year.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@ Amended standards effective in 2023 but not
relevant to the Group

HKAS 16 (Amendment) Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds
before intended use

HKAS 37 (Amendment) Onerous contracts — Cost
of fuffilling a contract

HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Reference to the conceptual
framework

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2018-2020 Cycle

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combinations

RAMBFERLESNE - R658
BRI AR BMED) (F622%F)
ZHEHRERE

12 IR A B 1R 2 R AR B 75
REREAETRARS A T
FREEEEGCEREAASESR K
ZBIRERIELHE o PR EH
AREERIBE IS RYEE
MBEBRREERAFEZBRR LM
Z BEERHE4RE -

211 ENBRRBEEEN 228
(a)  FRR20234F £X41H £ EE
BRI AE S ETE R

ABUERE  NE BER
ERFE6R  RE:EET
(3 BRANAMR

U

BASHEN  BRAN-EN
FI7% Erakiles
(530)

RENBRE  HOERZRL
ERIESHR
(&3

R 2018522020

FREEE
BBREE
BlmEE N

S:HEE5%  AREHAHN

(CH)) AfFeshE
EBEEEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B1 75 R R MY At

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EXREFHEBERE)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 211 B BERREENZEH
(Continued) (#)
(b)  The following new and amended standards have )  TFIBEREER2022
been issued but are not effective for the financial F4/1HFIEZ B F
year beginning on 1 April 2022 and have not been JE H R R R AR EE
early adopted by the Group FKIB R IR #TET R AE
CHES)

106

Effective for
annual periods

beginning
on or after
RELT BHIER
ZERBZ
FEHBEN
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the Related 1 April 2023
Amendments
BEMBRELETH RE2E K RABBHER] 20234 A1A
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of accounting policies 1 April 2023
Statement 2 (Amendments)
EEEEAE IR L BEBR AR 20234 A 1A
BB BMEEERRE
F25% (1B5T)
HKAS 8 (Amendment) Definition of accounting estimates 1 April 2023
EEGTEAESR (EF]) BEIHEFTHER 20234 A1H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 April 2023
arising from a single transaction
EAGEAE125 (BT HE - ZEECAERABEBREL 20234718
I8
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- 1 April 2024
current
BAGHEAFE 1R UEE]) BEABEARILIERD 20244 H1H

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R & B &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXREFHEBERE)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 211 B BERREENZEH
(Continued) (#&
(b)  The following new and amended standards have (b)  TFIIRE RMEER2022
been issued but are not effective for the financial F4A1H R BF
year beginning on 1 April 2022 and have not been JE 14 R A BX R A 2R [E
early adopted by the Group (Continued) KIERIRAN < #T5T R4
1EETER ()

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
RELT BHIEE
ZERBRZ
FEHBEN

HK(FRIC) — Int 5

H8 (BR M mE 28
ZE®) -REESR

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

A EUEIRIERD

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

R B RELERIFE 165
(&7])

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BRI EERFE 1058 &
BB e ERIFE285 (EFT)

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

2 BHRE - BERABHBRERER
BN ERERS R

Non-current Liabilities with Covenant

MR mmIERE A G

Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

ERERPHEEARE

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture

KREEEREBMERNRNGERAZHZEE

HEHRA

The above new and amended standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity

in the current or future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.

1 April 2024

2024411

1 April 2024
2024F4H1H
1 April 2024
20244 R 1H

Not yet established

R REE L

B B HT AT R ERT
EQHAER B AR
TREERER R
KORZHHERBBEK
EAERZE -

EREEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 15 %

=M

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.21

2.2.2

2.2.3

108

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to confirm with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined it to be a joint venture. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2

EXREFHEBERE)
22 MIEAT
2.21 &#E8RE
WBARZEAEEEFIEH
EzERB(BIELAEEER) -
”*ZISEE%X&;ﬁMﬁiE%@

2.2.2

2.23

Bzr#ER - AHEE
i@ﬁ“ﬁjﬁ‘ﬁfZ%ﬂ%;?“E
W - RIARSEEIE %”;/(EE% g
MEARBZEHEEES
BERREMREEAR - M]E
NEEERIERILE ARERLE
HEAR -

SEARAE RS - HERE
L EPNSIE P S-S L §

i o REREBETTUY
RS RHEERRARE
FEEEHTRER - HELQ
AlZ 2R ENEHFERIEL
AR BREAKEZEFER
B2 e

B BBERR

KB R B 2R E TH AR AR
BMEAR KABREREER
FEIERNA - B AR Z R E M
AR wIEE Y K A AE A
BE o

BERY
REEEHMBREENF
MAERY  ERERHETH
%xﬁ)d\/ﬁ"* RERKLEHA
2 nERTIEEKREENS
Z’U%’\ﬂ%ﬁ% CMIERE LB
HARRBME - ARECF
MEAERFNEELEBER
‘/:l\AA/_\T AMF\TBZ*E /2
N X



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 75 R R M At

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.3

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from a joint venture are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.7

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the entities now comprising the Group that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B1 75 R R MY At

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4

2.5

110

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices and residential
property for a director. Leasehold land classified as finance lease
and all other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 75 R R M At

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Land and buildings

— Office equipment

— Furniture and fixtures

— Leasehold improvements
— Motor vehicles

40-50 years

4 years
4 years
4 years
4 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as “Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of investment

properties”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B1 75 R R MY At

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

112

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have indefinite useful lives are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. All assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffer an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R & B &

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2

2.8.3

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & B &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

114

2.8.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R & B &

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.4

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instrument
assets carried at amortised cost. The Group recognises a
loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

o An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

° The time value of money; and

o Reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Note 3.1(b) provides more detail of how the expected
credit loss allowance is measured.

Loans and interest receivables and repossessed assets
of the Group are classified as debt investments carried at
amortised cost and are subject to the ECL model.

While cash and cash equivalents, deposit and other
receivables are also subject to the impairment requirement
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & B &

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.10 Loans and interest receivables

211

Loans receivable are property mortgage loans granted to
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from property mortgage
and personal loans granted to customers in the ordinary course
of business.

Loan and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Deposits and other receivables

Deposits and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks.

2.13 Share capital

116

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Other payables

Other payable are presents as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & B &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

118

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(o) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment properties
that are measured at fair value is determined assuming
the properties will be recovered entirely through use and
through sale for investment properties in Hong Kong.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R & B &

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity, respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

(@

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of reporting
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & B &

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

120

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations

For employees in Hong Kong, the Group has a defined
contribution plan. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & B &

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.20 Repossessed assets

2.21

122

There are two types of repossessed assets:

In the recovery of credit-impaired loans and interest receivables,
the Group takes ownership and control of the collateral assets
(e.g. through court proceedings) for release of the obligations of
the borrower. Repossessed assets are classified as non-current
assets held for sale when they meet the definition of non-current
assets held for sale and the recognition criteria under HKFRS 5.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of fair
value less costs of disposal and the carrying amount. The related
loans and interest receivables together with the impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated statement
of financial position upon the recognition of these repossessed
assets.

In situation where the Group obtains rights to rent or sell of the
underlying collateral assets in the recovery of credit-impaired
loans and interest receivables (e.g. through court proceedings)
but does not obtain ownership and control of the underlying
collateral assets, repossessed assets represent these credit-
impaired loans and interest receivables that are not derecognised
and continue to be measured at amortised cost less provision
for impairment under HKFRS 9.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective

interest rate.

(b) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.22 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need
to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as

lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B1 75 R R MY At

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.24 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

124

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to various types of financial risks:
market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Market risk — Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from its bank and
other borrowings, bonds and an amount due to a fellow
subsidiary. Bank and other borrowings and an amount
due to a fellow subsidiary issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Bonds issued at fixed
rates are not subject to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest-rate risk. The Group manages its cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk mainly by adjusting the
interest rates on loans granted to customers.
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BA 75 R R M At

3.1
(@)

(b)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B ERER(E)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMBERRBREE®E
Market risk — Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (@ WEERK-BEERERAFE
(Continued) FlZ= @b ()
As at 31 March 2023, if market interest rates had been 1% 202353318 - Hiis A
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax EAE/RE1% EREH
profit for the year would have been HK$2,547,507 lower/ MEERFIEZART -
higher (2022: HK$2,793,775), mainly as a result of higher/ FEARRZZENEFER 2 R
lower interest expense on bank and other borrowings and 17 N H At 18 3O K JE S —
amount due to a fellow subsidiary carried at variable rates. B RH B AR RIEZF AR
MR BRRER
2 B & m gD R L 18
M2,547,507 %t (20224 -
2,793,775% 7T)
Credit risk by FERRE
The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash REBZEEERBREERER
equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables, SRS EEY ERER -
deposits and other receivables. Management has a credit FEUF) B - =& REMEUEK
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks H- - BEECEREEBSR -
are monitored on an ongoing basis. The carrying amount WIHEERZEEERR - B
of these balances represents the Group’s maximum BEREEEREAEERTX
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets are as FriiemEEMmMAERZ&ARE
follows: BEREK
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FET FHT
Loans receivable JEME X 22 872,271 930,469
Interest receivables FENFIE 23 22,903 21,776
Repossessed assets e &EE 24 7,126 7,248
Deposits and other receivables Ba ME MR
A 25 1,504 1,254
Cash and cash equivalents ReERESZED 26 29,875 24,882
933,679 985,629
EBEEEEERAT

20234 1 25
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

126

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

Credit risk management

Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong, which the Group’s management
believes are of high credit quality.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the Group
assesses the credit quality of the customer based
on the customer’s financial position, past experience
and other factors.

For property mortgage loans, the Group holds
collateral against loans receivable and interest
receivables in the form of mortgages over property.
The majority of the collateral are residential
properties, commercial properties and industrial
properties and all of the collaterals are located in
Hong Kong. Individual risk limits are set based on
the value of collateral provided by customers and
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits
set by the directors. The utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

()

Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group generally grants loans with a loan-to-
value ratio of no more than 70% of the value in the
valuation report of the property for first property
mortgage, and where it is a subordinate property
mortgage, the aggregate lending from all lenders to
the customer should not exceed 70% of the value of
the underlying property. Approval from the directors,
a credit manager and a credit officer are needed for
loans granted with a loan-to-value ratio that exceeds
70%. The directors meet regularly to review the
loan-to-value ratio and when (1) there is a significant
change in the property price index in Hong Kong; or
(2) when loans are renewed. The directors consider
that the credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables is significantly mitigated by the property
held as collateral, with reference to the estimated
market value of the property which were valued by
independent third-party valuers as at the end of the
reporting period.

In general, the loan officers of the Group propose to
management of the Company on a monthly basis
the amount of provision to be made.

For personal loans, the Group assesses the credit
quality of the customer based on the customer’s
financial position, past experience, internal and
external credit rating of the customers and other
factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

128

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

ECL measurement
HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for

impairment based on changes in credit quality since
initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-
impaired on initial recognition.

Stage 1:

Stage 2:  If a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition is identified, the
financial instrument is moved to Stage
2 but is not yet deemed to be credit-

impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to Stage 3.

Stage 3:

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL
measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime expected credit losses that result from
default events possible within the next 12 months.
Investment in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL
measured based on expected credit losses on a
lifetime basis. A pervasive concept in measuring
ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9 is that it should
consider forward-looking information. The key
judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group
in addressing the requirements of the standard are
discussed below.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
the following criteria has been met:

° The borrower is more than 30 days past due
on its contractual payments.

The assessment of significant increase in credit
risk is performed on a monthly basis for all loans
and interest receivables held by the Group. The
criteria used to identify significant increase in credit
risk are monitored and reviewed periodically for
appropriateness by the directors and the credit
team. The Group has not used the low credit risk
exemption for any financial instruments in the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a loan as in default, which is fully
aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it
meets one or more of the following criteria:

° The borrower is more than 90 days past due
on its contractual payments.

° The borrower is deceased.

° The borrower is insolvent.

° It is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy.

3 HEEKREEE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

130

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(iv)

)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
(Continued)

The criteria above have been applied to all loans
held by the Group and are consistent with the
definition of default used for internal credit risk
management purposes. The default definition has
been applied consistently to model the Probability
of Default (“PD”), Exposure at Default (“EAD”) and
Loss Given Default (“LGD”) throughout the Group’s
expected loss calculations.

ECL measuring techniques

ECLs are the discounted product of the PD, EAD
and LGD defined as follows:

° PD represents the likelihood of a borrower
defaulting on its financial obligation.

° EAD is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default.

° LGD represents the Group’s expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. It
varies by type of counterparty and availability
of collateral.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD
and EAD for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted
based on the forward-looking information.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(v)

ECL measuring techniques (Continued)

The lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity
profile to the current 12-month PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio
from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based
on historical observed data and is assumed to be
the same across all assets within a portfolio. This is
supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined
based on the contractual repayments owed by the
borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined
based the factors which impact the recoveries made
post default. For property mortgage loans, this is
primarily based on collateral type and projected
collateral values, historical discounts to market
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed. For personal loans, LGDs’
are typically set at product level due to the limited
differentiation in recoveries achieved across different
borrowers.

Forward-looking economic information is also
included in determining the 12-month and lifetime
PD, EAD and LGD.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation are
monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis. There
have been no significant changes in estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during
the reporting period.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

132

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(v

(vii)

Forward-looking information incorporated

The Group has established macro-economic
forecast model. The Group conduct forecasts
regularly to establish three economic scenario,
optimistic, neutral and pessimistic to ensure
coverage of non-linear features for the ECL model.
Neutral scenario is defined as the most probable
situation which will become benchmark for other
scenarios. Optimistic and pessimistic scenarios
are possible scenarios which are better and worse
than neutral scenario respectively. The Group
uses internal and external information to generate
a neutral scenario. The external information used
includes economic data and forecasts published by
the government and monetary authorities.

Other forward-looking considerations such as the
impact of any regulatory, legislative or political
changes have been considered but are not deemed
to have material impact and therefore no adjustment
has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is
reviewed and monitored for appropriateness on a
quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to
the inputs used in internally developed models,
macroeconomic variables in the forward-looking
forecasts, economic scenario weighting and
other factors considered when applying expert
judgment. Changes in these inputs, assumptions
and judgments impact the assessment of significant
increase in credit risk and the measurement of
ECLs.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRRRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMBERRBREE®E
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEREGE)
(vii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (Vi) BUREE DT (4E)

The following table shows the impact on the reversal TRBETER & A

of ECL allowance on loans and interest receivables BE B ¥ 202393 A31

as at 31 March 2023 by changing individual inputs. BZzRERKREZEFEZ
BREERBABE Y
@,

Impact on the provision for
ECL allowance on loans and

Change in input on ECL model interest receivables
HEARERERRAEZ

AR EERAEX 2B ABE2E AIHEERABRE XS

— Assuming a further 10% weighting added to the probability —  Decrease by HK$187,000

of the optimistic scenario and a corresponding 10%
weighting reduction in the base scenario

BRRLBIEN < WEFEINTINEE10% - W EFEIE A 187,000/ 7T
FERAHEE10%
— Assuming a further 10% weighting added to the probability — Increase by HK$578,000

of the pessimistic scenario and a corresponding 10%
weighting reduction in the base scenario

BREBIEN 2 WEFHINFINEE10% - W EFEIE AR #1N578,0007 7T
FER A HEE10%
— Assuming the forecast collateral value increased by 10% - Decrease by HK$5,379,000
BRI R EEIZIN10% 845,379,000/ 7T
= Assuming the forecast collateral value decreased by 10% - Increase by HK$17,176,000
BRFFEAEIRREEMD10% #h017,176,0007% 7T
EAGEEEERAR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B ERER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMBERRBREE®E
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEREGE)
(vii) ~ Credit risk exposure (vii) 15 E R
The following table contains an analysis of the credit TREIEBREE
risk exposure of loans and interest receivables for BERABEZERKER
which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross EMBEZEERRD
carrying amount of loans and receivables below also o AT E R R EWER
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit HREBAMNMRERA
risk on these assets. SEMRZEEERS 2

RAEERR -

Movements in gross balance of loans and interest FE U & 51 K ) B A e 4R
receivables: ¥ B E

Year ended 31 March 2023

BZ2023F3831ALFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1ER F2AR FIEER st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT TR

Balance as at 31 March 2022 R20224F3A31H 2 84 737,105 123,613 113,464 974,182
New loans originated HEER 453,985 16,734 21,678 492,397
Loans recovered or repaid during FRKEHEEER

the year (461,642) (36,458) (45,610) (543,710)
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2~ S 1FEEE A FH2/EE (19,873) 19,873 - -
Transfers from Stage 110 Stage 3~ S 1M BV A S35 ER (30,003) = 30,003 -
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1~ SR B A 1M ER 33,659 (33,659) = =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ S 2R B EE A\ 3 EY = (50,981) 50,981 =
Total transfers between stages PEER 2 B R AT (16,217) (64,767) 80,984 =
Loans receivable directly written-off Bl & & R & 3 = (538) (162) (700)
As at 31 March 2023 #2023F3H31H 713,231 38,584 170,354 922,169

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(viii)  Credit risk exposure (Continued)

M EREEE)
BB EREE @)
FERRE)

3.1

(b)

(vii) 1B (&)

Year ended 31 March 2022

BZ202243A31BILFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ERlAE FoME Ekeltg2q st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T THx T

Balance as at 31 March 2021 M2021F3A31R 2 5 686,872 59,417 109,665 855,954
New loans originated MEER 541,937 36,396 21,808 600,141

Loans recovered or repaid during FRKEREEER
the year (431,045) (24,846) (20,026) (475,917
Transfers from Stage 110 Stage 2~ S 1 EVEE A 2K Y (53,606) 53,606 = =
Transfers from Stage 110 Stage 3~ S 1 EVEE A E3MEL (7,378) = 7,378 =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1~ F2BEBREAF1EE 1,009 (1,009) = =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ F2MEE#E A B3R & - (4,252) 4,252 S
Transfers from Stage 3to Stage 1~ E3MEERE AF 1B E - - - -
Transfers from Stage 3to Stage 2~ 3PS EREE A B 2R B = 4,301 (4,301) =
Total transfers between stages PRER v s meE (59,975) 52,646 7,329 =
Loans receivable directly written-off B # S FE UL & 38 (634) = (5,312) (5,996)
As at 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H 737,105 123,613 113,464 974,182
EREEEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRRRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIBEAEREEZ®
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEREGE)
(viij)  Credit risk exposure (Continued) Vvii) 5B ()
Movements in ECL allowance on loans and interest FEWE R R F ST
receivables: BEABE 22

Year ended 31 March 2023

BZ2023F3A31HLFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RER FoRER HIREER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx

Balance as at 31 March 2022 M2022F3A31A &5 2,867 2,055 17,015 21,937
Allowance on new loans originated ~ FHRFTIEE 540 496 32 1,068
Allowances reversed on loans FRBETAREK

recovered or repaid during the BEER

year (1,953) (414) (1,285) (3,652)
Transfers from Stage 1to Stage 3~ 1B AF3RE (74) = 74 =
Transfers from Stage 2to Stage 1~ 2P EREE A B 1R EL 108 (108) = =
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ S5 2R EYEE A\ S53M4 % = (1,532) 1,532 -
Total transfers between stages P& v MEReE 34 (1,640) 1,606 -

Impact on year end ECL exposure ~ $1ERFBHEEBEXARZ

vE 438 = 4,921 5,359

Movement within same stage due ~ E{EEE% E M|
to change in credit risk R—FEE A28 251 = 2,032 2,283
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31H 2,177 497 24,321 26,995

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRRRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMBERRBREE®E
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEREGE)
(vii)  Credit risk exposure (Continued) vii) 1EE/R (&)

Year ended 31 March 2022

HE2020F3A3RLFE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RN E EoMEER Rl st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TAR TAR TAL TAR

Balance as at 31 March 2021 M2021F3A31R 2 8 4,425 327 16,668 21,420
Allowance on new loans originated ~ FTRFTIEE 2,560 156 918 3,634
Allowances reversed on loans SREBFARORER

recovered or repaid during the X

year (1,831) (327) (737) (2,895)
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2~ F1BEERE A F2MEE (1,911) 1,911 = =
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3~ F 1B E A B3R E (68) = 68 S
Total transfers between stages PRER R EE (1,979) 1,911 68 =

Impact on year end ECL exposure ~ ${FRBHEEBREER

vE = (120) (68) (188)
Movement within same stage due ~~ EEERBREE M 3K
to change in credit risk Gl (308) 108 166 (34)
As at 31 March 2022 20223 F31H 2,867 2,065 17,015 21,937
ERERERERAT

20234 3R 1 3 7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B1 75 R R MY At

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

138

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(©

Credit risk (Continued)

(ix)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off loans and interest receivables,
in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group
may write-off loans and interest receivables that are
still subject to enforcement activities. The amounts
written-off during the year ended 31 March 2023
was HK$700,000 (2022: HK$5,996,000). The Group
still seeks to recover amounts it is legally owed
in full, but which have been written-off due to no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

(x)  Concentration risk

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 11% (2022: 8%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023. They
accounted for approximately 2% (2022: 8%) of the
gross loans receivable balances as at 31 March
2023.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal financial position ratio targets
and, if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group’s primary cash requirements, apart from
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank
and other borrowings, bonds, an amount due to a fellow
subsidiary and operating expenses.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date.

BRRAREE®)
3.1 BEBEEZE#E

(c)

RBESEREEE)
BRREFPRLERIN  KEE
ZEBBRSHERRBRITREM
fERER - EF BN —ER
EMBARRALEER ©

TRERBHRERREZEHE
HEFApBHESRER L
TREBBEEEBERMAERNEN
DHT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year: 1R -
Other payables and accruals H th AT RRIE 2
FEFTERM 5,984 6,198
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R —ERZREWB AR
A 96,467 109,740
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAMIE R 229,235 292,875
Bonds and interest payables BEH RERFLE - 23,681
331,686 432,494
Two to five years: 2FE5%F ¢
Other borrowings HAbER 187 150
Over five years: 5FLAE -
Other borrowings HAb AR 680 796
EREEEEERAT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B S B B (48)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 BAXEBER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REBEERAZ BERRERE
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order B g thaRkEREED
to provide returns to the shareholder and benefits for other WY AHMFOERHENZE UK
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to R R E 2 IR ZERE DURE IR AN
reduce the cost of capital. PNES
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BB ERAEE  AEBL
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return GRABINTREZRE - MR
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce BRERAK BITHRILEEEMN
debt. AR ETS
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AEBUNEEBRLEXREEER
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net ARAS o 2z bt IR E B F R AR AR
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank and other RETUHE -ERFEABRA
borrowings’, ‘bonds’ and ‘amount due to a fellow subsidiary’ as B(BEFEUBKARAMT 2R
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less TREMER] - [BFIRIENS—HE
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ BEMNBARREBEDRAGEESS
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. B - RABBEARESTBHHRREK
The Group’s strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratio IRz RIS  AEE 2K
and net cash position of the Group as at 31 March 2023 are as HIRTE . REER2023F3H31H
follows: ZEEABLERBSMRRFED
T
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P sE FHET FHET
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R E A E K 30 230,102 293,790
Bonds &% 31 = 22,911
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary & — R XK B A A
HIA 34(p) 96,467 109,740
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY 26 (29,875) (24,882)
Net debt B F 5 296,694 401,559
Total equity HEmiBEE 784,715 736,620
Gearing ratio EEABER 0.38 0.55

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B S B B (48)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AR {EME
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TREBHAERAFEMBMBERN
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2023 by level of inputs to CHAEBER oW AKEER
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs 2023F3A31 HIZAFEYEZ &/
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as TH - BHEBAZBBENZTIEGEA
follows: NEFERBA=FEEL
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical - A—EBEXGEREETSZ
assets or liabilities (level 1). HECREFR) (F—R) -
S Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that = BRESRE—RZIBEIN B
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that EXGEzIBREE AIE
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level %) kA5 (BNIR B (B 18) 8 A B
2). BE=R -
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on - WIHKBUBEMSEBMmE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level EZEEXEFEHE ASUE A
3). TAERE AR (F=4) -
2023 2022
20235 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Level 2 ER
Investment properties REY*E 105,200 113,330
Financial asset at fair value through BATFEFABRZZ
profit or loss TREE 800 800
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the FRNE—H - F_RRE=ZHFE
year (2022: Nil). 3 45 B B (20224 ¢ ) o
EAEHENARAT

20234 1 41
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for
loans and interest receivables is an area that requires the
use of complex models and significant assumptions about
future economic conditions and credit behavior. Explanation
of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in
measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 3.1(b), which also sets
out key sensitives of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying
the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

° Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

° Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL; and

° Establishing the number and relation weightings of forward
looking scenarios.

(o) Estimated valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment property is determined annually
by similar transaction on an open market in existing use basis.
In making the judgement, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly on market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period and appropriate capitalisation rates
of rental income.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & B &

EEgTH AT RAE

AEt RAE AN G - WABRELRR
HMRRAEE BEBRABERHRMAEE
EEREATBAEZEN -

AEBRARRELGFTRER - BERE
& MEAGFEARLEERERS
BE - PREHT M RFEZEER
BEREEFLRERAEZERNRRZ M
PR BRFRmWAINT

(@) FEFEEBRELABEZFTE
EREREFEET EEBREE
ZHEDAEFREREEXUREH
RREERAREETAZEAR
BEE BAGTEEEEIEX
FTABARE BRERMGFTHEZ
IR MIFES. A (o) — FrFal - &P
MEBIEFF EEEBREZSE RS
B EBHHE °

EREBERFEERAZE
MERTAFEHZREAHE - §
m

EEERBEEENZE

i W?:

s FERAGEERXERAE
BEARBRR

o HIFTRIEER 2B REFEE
&

(b) REMFRZMEFHEE

REMEZAFESFZAANER
EEZERNHAMSE 2 BURSE

o MR PIETE @ EEEEE
BHEEATBRARAS KA
BEBRAEZBR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 75 R R M At

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Income tax

The Group is subject to current income tax. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred income tax
assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
(and laws) and the best knowledge of profit projections of the
Group for coming years during which the deferred income tax
assets are expected to be utilised. In assessing the amount of
deferred income tax assets that need to be recognised, the
Group considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that the Group
estimates of projected future taxable income and benefits from
available tax strategies are changed, or changes in current tax
regulations are enacted that would impact the timing or extent
of the Group’s ability to utilise the tax benefits of net operating
loss carried forward in the future, adjustments to the recorded
amount of net deferred income tax assets and income tax
expense would need to be made. In addition, management will
revisit the assumptions and profit projections at each balance
sheet date.

4

ERETHETT RAEE)

(c)

Frg®t

AEBABNERSH - BEM
BHBERAEHEAHE - RZ
RXPRFEZHBRRMIBRERE -
AEEERGFTATREIMNIADH
BREABRBETRAEZAE
FRSKREABREZINARE R
TR AZHeFEETHAMME
ZEHM BRI ERMBSHEER
BfE-

EEFEHRAELE B EMK
BEECHEM  REMEERARE
EEHEESBEELEHBRE
BERERZRE(RED)EE - &
AARRATBE B AR TS R a] AR E
HERZHE THARTMERE
o

AEEERERBEERMAKEELD
B2 BE (FOER) - A RAREER
EHSRELERMSHEEZRREF
B 2 & 7 J8 R B E BT P S X
BE  -HAATHRRBZIELEMENR
BESHRE AKEEZTRRKE
RABWARBITERERAITZHE
REIRBE - AR E A RBIEBRK
JE SR U A B2 3R B T 7 SR B P 7 2R
a2z A HRERZE - RIRTT
MBERGETREFERNEER
BRBRABREREERFRIRNBAH
sz REAENEE - RIAREBM
BEELEMEHEEFERAER
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
management committee which comprises the executive directors and
the chief executive officer of the Group. The management committee
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The management committee has determined
the operating segments based on these reports.

The management committee has determined that the Group is
organised into two main operating segments: (i) Property mortgage
loans and (ii) Personal loans. The management committee measures
the performance of the segments based on their respective segment
results. The segment results derived from profit/loss before taxation,
excluding unallocated income/(expenses). Unallocated income/
(expenses) mainly comprise of corporate income net off with corporate
expenses including salary and other administrative expenses which are
not attributable to particular reportable segment.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalent and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets which are managed on a
group basis. Segment liabilities exclude income tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities which are managed on
a group basis.

There were no sales between the operating segments in the years
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets were
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31

March 2023 and 2022.

All of the Group’s operating segments operate solely in Hong Kong,
and accordingly geographical segment information is not presented.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5
For the year ended 31 March 2023

DEHERE)
HE2023F3A31HLLFE

Property
mortgage Personal
loans loans Unallocated Total
MERBER HAER ROE @t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TET Tz TET TET
Revenue from external customers RENBEP 2z 108,244 52,730 = 160,974
Other income HiA 644 447 2,186 3,277
Fair value losses on revaluation of ERRENECATE
investment properties B = = (8,130) (8,130)
Provision for impairment and write-off of RIS E TR B R B
loans receivable, net HEE (2,681) (3,077) = (5,758)
Administrative expenses G (31,295) (21,298) (4,633) (57,226)
Operating profit/(loss) LEREA/ (B8) 74,912 28,802 (10,577) 93,137
Finance costs N (17,294) (1,705) (1,871) (20,870)
Share of loss of & joint venture FMEREDRZER - - (42) (42)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSBATER/ (B8) 57,618 27,097 (12,490) 72,225
Income tax expense FERAX (6,665) (4,876) (1,799) (13,340)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive ARAEENEEFE
income/ (loss) for the year attributable to #H/ (BB REH
owners of the Company WA/ (BB e 50,953 22,221 (14,289) 58,885
As at 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31H
Property
mortgage Personal
loans loans Unallocated Total
MERBEN MAEX ROE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TERT THERT TERT TERT
Segment assets NEEE 515,370 427,484 183,352 1,126,206
Segment liabilities KBaE (270,539) (33,113) (37,839) (341,491)
Other information: Hi &R
Depreciation expense nERY (604) (330) (1,940) (2,874)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment: MERE/ (EE) -
- Stage 1 - 1R 427 263 - 690
- Stage 2 - BoBR 1,588 (30) - 1,558
- Stage 3 - B (4,680) (2,626) - (7,306)
Loans and interest receivables written-off MR ER RS (16) (684) = (700)
EAEEEEERAT

20234 3R 1 45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥R W ot

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER(E)

146

For the year ended 31 March 2022

HE2022F3A31HLLFE

Property
mortgage Personal
loans loans Unallocated Total
MERIBER MAER ROHE fat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER TR TR
Revenue from external customers RENHEP 2 W= 102,165 51,323 = 153,488
Other income Hep e A 148 1 1,245 1,394
Fair value gains on revaluation of BEEEENE A TERR
investment properties - - 8,980 8,980
Provision for impairment and write-off FEU S OB B 18 R 8
of loans receivable, net ek (3,825) (2,688) = (6,513)
Administrative expenses G (29,964) (16,525) 6,571) (53,060)
Operating profit g R 68,524 32,111 3,654 104,289
Finance costs BEARKAK (14,380) 92) (6,637) (21,100)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BATEHAIER/ (B518) 54,144 32,019 (2,983) 83,180
Income tax expense FIEREY (6,656) (4,590) (1,384) (12,630)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive ARABEEANEEFE
income/(loss) for the year attrioutable #H/ (BB REE
to owners of the Company WA/ (B1B) @ 47,488 27,429 (4,367) 70,550
As at 31 March 2022 M202243H31H
Property
mortgage Personal
loans loans Unallocated Total
MEZBEK AER AR @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TET
Segment assets NBEE 671,713 322,709 182,653 1,177,075
Segment liabilities AHEE (368,336) (10,836) (61,283 (440,455)
Other information: HiE#H
Depreciation expense HERZ (648) (423) (1,939) (3,010)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment; HERR (B
- Stage 1 - F1RE 1,900 (349) = 1,557
- Stage 2 - FoRER (1,588) (140) = (1,728)
- Stage 3 - BIER 1,103 (1449) = (346)
Loans and interest receivables written-off WEERERRF (5,239) (757) = (5,996)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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6

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

6

Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong. Revenue and other income recognised during the

year are as follows:

W 2 DA R E A WA 2 W 58

W ERBREMERBERRLAE
R MEEBPIRRZ A SHBA - RER
R et AR EAWAIT

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
Revenue W
Interest income — property mortgage FEUWA - MERBER
loans 108,244 102,165
Interest income — personal loans FEBWA - FLAER 52,730 51,323
Total revenue Pt 160,974 153,488
Other income HaA
Rental income el A 2,250 1,314
Management service fee income ERRBEWA = 74
Sundry income HMIAWA 48 6
Government grant (Note) BT B (P ) 979 -
Total other income H AU A 4258 3,277 1,394

Note: Government grant represents subsidy from “Employment Support
Scheme” launched by Hong Kong government to provide financial
support to employers to retain employees. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or other conditions or other contingencies attaching to these

subsidies.

MiaE

BT B A RF L 2
[MR3E 28 B TR B BE
BAREBES 2L - HERE
BT - Efb iRt AR
M IR 2 FFERG

EREEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B1 75 R R MY At

7 PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT AND WRITE-OFF OF 7

LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

FE W & SRR B 1 I 8 R R

Year ended 31 March 2023

BZ2023F3A31ALEE
Lifetime
expected Lifetime
12 months credit loss expected
expected not credit credit loss
credit loss impaired  credit impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
YEREERE HREERE
128AFE: 22 HEE ZE B
FEBX FERX FERX
(1M &) (20 &) (3 R) @t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment on M B TR E (B ) /B
loans receivable (690) (1,558) 7,306 5,058
Write-off of loans receivable s E K - 538 162 700
(690) (1,020) 7,468 5,758
Year ended 31 March 2022
HE2022F3A31BLLEE
Lifetime
expected Lifetime
12 months credit loss expected
expected not credit credit loss
credit loss impaired credit impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
WEEERE HREERE
REAER 22 HEE Z 2B
FEEX FER% FER%
(F1fRE) (BoRR) (B3R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR THT
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment on R E R E (R R) /et
loans receivable (1,657) 1,728 346 517
Write-off of loans receivable MHEMER 684 = 5,312 5,996
873) 1,728 5,658 6,513

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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8 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 8 TR X
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k= FHET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration ZERN B &
— audit services - BERR® 740 800
- non-audit services - EBEZARE 350 250
Advertising and marketing expenses BEREHEAT 11,353 7,005
Bank charges RITWE 1,211 627
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZEITE
equipment 16 2,874 3,010
Directors’ emoluments e 7,014 6,295
Donations B® 59 888
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERMAZCTaE
directors’ emoluments) BEEMe) 9(a) 21,662 19,038
Legal and professional fees EERBEEER 3,453 4,425
Referral fees EAEBA 1,628 1,963
Stamp duty on acquisition of investment  UREIR & ¥ 2 ENTERT
properties - 2,200
Transportation expenses B 950 781
Valuation and search fee HELREMER 1,308 1,067
Other expenses HEhFx 4,624 4,711
57,226 53,060
EREEEEERAT
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BERFAX(TEEESEHE)

(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year are as (@ FAEEENEAZOT:
follows:

2023 2022

20234F 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries e 19,210 16,514

Discretionary bonuses BB 4L 1,534 1,717
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE KA - FEHKEE

plans (Note) (B 3E) 236 588

Other benefits HabEF 682 219

21,662 19,038

Note:

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each required
to contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a ceiling
of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to

reduce the contribution payable in future year.

150
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9

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING 9
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group included 3 directors for the year ended 31 March 2023
(2022: 3), whose emoluments are reflected in Note 10. The
emoluments payable to the remaining 2 individuals for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 2), are as follows:

BERFAX(TEEESHS) @

b) EEBRSHATL
HE2023F3F31HILFE - A&EE
hE&EEHALBIEIHR(2022F
3R)EE - ZEWEC REBAH
10 » B E2023F3A31HILFE @ &
N8 T24 (20224 : 2R) & A

TZE&mT

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FHET

Salaries e 2,493 2,195

Discretionary bonuses BIBIELT 676 497
Pension costs — defined contribution BREKRA - REH-NREE

plans 36 36

3,205 2,728

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2022: 2) highest paid
individuals fell within the following band:

#HT2% (2022F 2B ) A=
ZEHEeBEMT :

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Emolument band B4 &6 E
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T —
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
EBERENERAT
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS 10 EERARFZ=
(a) Directors’ emoluments () ES=ME
The remuneration of each director is set out below: BEEZZHMEHIMT ¢
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s HE2023F3A3IBILEEMIEAS
services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary EARNRRHEKB AR EKRE
undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2023: EABRTS 2 BT s EK BN & -

Allowances  Employer’s
and benefits contribution
inkind  to the MPF

Fees Salaries Bonuses (Note) Scheme Total
BEREY BESHEY
e e A BRMEZ 2EZHZ @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THT THT THT THT

Executive directors HTEE

Mr. Chan Koung Nam BrELE = 1,674 44 420 = 2,508
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William BAEEE = 1,674 414 840 18 2,946
Mr. Tse Pui To HEERAE = 1,473 365 = 18 1,856
Ms. Chan Siu Ching BNELL = 301 181 = 8 490

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond Bk LA 80 = = = = 80
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry REMREE 198 = = = = 198
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REEEE 138 = = = = 138
Mr. Wong Kai Man Wong Kai Man%t 4 58 = = = = 58

474 5,122 1,374 1,260 44 8,274

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary

undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2022:

10 EEEMRANZE)
(@ E=Me®

HE2022F3A31HILFERIEAE
EAKRRQRSEWBE QR EKRMGE
EABRTS 2 B AT sk e BN &

Allowances  Employer's
and benefits  contribution
in kind to the MPF

Fees Salaries Bonuses (Note) Scheme Total
B2EREY  wEeiHE
e e A B0 ZEEEX @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT THET TAT TAT TAT
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chan Koung Nam RxEEE = 1,610 398 420 2 2,430
Mr. Chan Kwong Yin Wiliam BHrBEE - 1,610 398 840 18 2,866
Mr. Tse Pui To FEELE - 1,416 351 - 18 1,785
Independent non- executive ~ BIFHITEE
directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wing Raymond BKEEE 138 = = = = 138
Mr. Chu Yat Pang Terry REMELE 198 = = = = 198
Mr. Cheung Kok Cheong REE%A 138 = = = = 138
474 4,636 1,147 1,260 38 7,555
Note: B E

The allowances and benefits in kind represents the rental of residential
properties owned by the Group and used by Mr. Chan Koung Nam of
HK$420,000 and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William of HK$840,000 (2022: Mr.
Chan Koung Nam of HK$420,000 and Mr. Chan Kwong Yin William of

HK$840,000).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement

benefits or termination benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

UM REYEMNERANEREES BRXE
EERBRABEEFERZEEDEZE
%% 51/420,0007% 7T &% 840,000/% 7T (2022
& RS E420,0008 TR E L
4840,000/87T) °

(b) EFRMEBRBEF

BEEENAFEAKIREKK SR
ERAE A 4R ¢ 48 ) 3 B B 48 A (2022
FE) -

EREEEEERAR
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2023, no consideration was

provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of

directors, controlled bodied corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements or contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2022: Nil).

11 FINANCE COSTS

10 EETEAMRAZE)

()

(d)

(e)

RESRFEOE=FRHE2K
]

HZE2023F3A31AILFE @ WER
EERBAS-HREENRE  HF
= I R B (20224 - M) o

EBUESE ZSZSEFEG
ZEANERREZEEEEEH
BrERASRAZER £
EXREMRZRZER
BEAENES  IZEEFEH
ZENBRREZEESTAREL
BERAXBAZEN EEHNHHE
b2 5 (20224 : ##) -

EENRS  THBEHZE
KER

MRMTFESARTIRBE BN - BEFRR
RERTRERE - AR AW EET L
AR EEEKEBEEARNRE
EREFHEEAEZI(EHERE
FHB)ZEARS THKAEYD
(20224 : f#) »

11 BERS

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET

Interest on amount due to a fellow e — R RME A FFRIE
subsidiary (Note 34(a)) & (H5E34(a) 6,325 6,279
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZFE 231 292
Interest on secured bank borrowings HIRFIRITERFE 11,959 6,817
Interest and related expenses on bonds BEHF 2B RBEME 274 6,262
Interest on other borrowings HE b ERF A 2,081 1,459
Total finance costs E XKL 20,870 21,109
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12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FiS%igx
Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 BAF2017F B (1B E]) (B75R) GBI E RS
have been provided for at the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2,000,000 AMARFIRSHH R - B ZE20235F K& 2022
of estimated assessable profits and 16.5% for estimated assessable FIASIBLEFE  GEREBERECE
profits above HK$2,000,000 as an entity of the Group qualified for 2,000,000/ 7T & 51 & 3R 504 7 #28.26% &1
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced pursuant to the IREABMEHEME - 2,000,0008 T4 £
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017. For group entities not 2 HETERBUR MR 16.5%TIRE B FIF
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, Hong Kong profits TRBE - RRFTEMAHFERBERER
tax has been provided for at a flat rate of 16.5%. ZEEEREMNES  ABMNESHUHR—BE
16.5%=H R34 -
The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated RérE E2EBRARMBRZAERAZ 28
statement of comprehensive income represents: 1 -
2023 2022
2023 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FAT
Hong Kong profits tax ERBNEB
- Current year - RFE 13,481 12,943
— Over-provision in prior years - BT FEBERE (30) (60)
Deferred income tax credit REFTEHER (111) (253)
13,340 12,630

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise as follows:

IR BB P ST AT S M E A 2 B TE BLIR 5
SRAMZEBOT

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Profit before income tax Rk FT1S B4 A 4 ) 72,225 83,180

Calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate of REBMEHHE16.5%TH

16.5% 11,917 18,725

Tax concession WIFER (165) (165)

Income not subject to taxation BARBTUA (190) (1,482)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes IR 1753 1,808 612

Over-provision in prior years BT FEBERE (30) (60)

Income tax expense FriSfiA 13,340 12,630
EREEEEERAT
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BRER
(@) Basic earnings per share (@ EREXEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREABAZFEARBELRR
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$58,885,000 AIER A FE {54 7158,885,000/% 7T
(2022: HK$70,550,000) by the weighted average number of (20224 : 70,550,000/ 7T) B AEL =
415,000,000 (2022: 415,000,000) ordinary shares in issue 2023F3A31A L FEEBEITEBR
during the year ended 31 March 2023. Z IN#E 5 $0415,000,0008% (2022

£ 1 415,000,0000%) °

2023 2022
2023F 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Profit attributable to owners of the RAEVER AERRF
Company (HK$’000) (FA7T) 58,885 70,550
Weighted average number of ordinary M EERERAF 2
shares in issue for basic earnings per B BT SRR 2 T
share ('000) (Fr%) 415,000 415,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRREARZF (B 14.2 17.0
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ER#BERF
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, diluted earnings per share R2023F N 2022F3A31H » AR
presented is the same as the basic earnings per share as there W BTN BB E L@
was no potentially diluted ordinary share outstanding. W25 BRESRFEFRER
ABFER -
14 DIVIDENDS 14 RKRE
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 of HK1.3 RARFEIRNEERRBFAGERERE
cents per share, totaling HK$5,395,000, is scheduled to be declared 2023F3A31HIEFE Z REHAKREFRK.3
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These Al - A $£55,395,0008 7T © ZELE M
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. BRMRUERRZERNKRE -
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Interim dividend paid of HK$1.3 cents (2022:  E I/ HARL B F A 1.378 11l
HK$1.3 cents) per share (20224 : 1.3784L) 5,395 5,395
Proposed final dividend of HK$1.3 cents BEAREREER1.35
(2022: HK$1.3 cents) per share (20224 = 1.3%1L) 5,395 5,395
10,790 10,790

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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15 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(@) Cash generated from operations (a) R&EMEBRE

15 HRERSREBRZME

2023 2022
2023F 20224
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FHET FHET
Profit before income tax B FT 1S B AT 4 A 72,225 83,180
Adjustments for: BTHISEEL AR
Depreciation e 16 2,874 3,010
Interest expenses B 11 20,870 21,109
Fair value losses/(gains) EHREMEZ
on revaluation of investment ANEEEE (W)
properties 17 8,130 (8,980)
Provision for impairment and FEUR B FUR B R
write-off of loans receivable, HiE FEE
net 5,758 6,513
Share of loss of a joint venture Ak (=R=R—/NCI % =] 42 -
Changes in working capital: LEEH
Loans receivable FEUE R 52,517 (92,972)
Interest receivables JE W R B, (1,204) (4,966)
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - me Rk
other receivables H b fE Y GRIE (710) (155)
Other payable and accruals HEMEARIER
A& 4) 1,777
Cash generated from operations ~ #&X& TSRS 160,498 8,516
EREEEEERAT
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15 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 15 HFeReRERZME®E)

FLOWS (Continued)

(b) This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) ZRENETE = 2023%F 202243 A
from financing activities for the years ended 31 March 2023 1AL ERETSMELEARE
and 2022. ZHER -

Amount
due to Bank and
a fellow Dividend other
subsidiary payable Bond borrowings Total
P
A
&L IR
ME  EARE &%  HtfER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TEx T TEx
At 1 April 2021 #2021F4A1H 128,840 - 100,811 177,058 406,709
Non cash — dividend declared FRe -BERRE - 10,790 = = 10,790
Non cash - interest expense FRe -FIBHY - - 1,100 = 1,100
Cash flow HERE (19,100) (10,790) (79,000) 116,732 7,842
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R2022F3A31H I
2022F4A1H 109,740 - 22,911 293,790 426,441
Non cash - dividend declared ¥he -EERKE = 10,790 = = 10,790
Non cash ~ interest expense R -FIEHY - - 89 - 89
Cash flow Heng (13273  (10790) (23,0000  (63688)  (110,751)
At 31 March 2023 #2023F3A31H 96,467 = = 230,102 326,569

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BERRE
Land and Office Furniture Leasehold Motor
buildings  equipment and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
THRES BORE GRREE HENERE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THx T THx THT THT
At 31 March 2021 120213A31A
Cost KA 90,326 3,693 1,894 3,964 1,577 101,454
Accumulated depreciation 2iME (18,436) (2,360) (1,855) (3,964) (734) (27,349)
Net book amount REFE 71,890 1,333 39 = 843 74,105
Year ended 31 March 2022 BZ0002F3A1ALER
Opening net book amount FNREFE 71,890 1,333 39 S 843 74,105
Additions RE = 174 126 = 828 1,128
Depreciation ik (1938 (658) (36) = (379) (3010)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 69,952 849 129 = 1,293 72,223
At 31 March 2022 1202263 431A
Cost KA 90,326 3,867 2,020 3,964 2,405 102,582
Accumulated depreciation ZHNE (20,374) (3,018) (1,891) (3,964) (1,112) (30,359)
Net book amount RETE 69,952 849 129 - 1,293 72,223
Year ended 31 March 2023 BZ0023F3A31ALLFRE
QOpening net book amount ENREFE 69,952 849 129 = 1,293 72,223
Additions HE = 159 144 = = 303
Depreciation ik (1,937) (420) (70) = (447) (2,874)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 68,015 588 203 = 846 69,652
At 31 March 2023 1202353318
Cost AR 90,326 4,026 2,164 3,964 2,405 102,885
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (22,311) (3,438) (1,961) (3,964) (1,559) (33,233)
Net book amount REFE 68,015 588 203 = 846 69,652
At 31 March 2023, the Group’s land and buildings with net book M2023F3A31H - AEEREFELNS
value of approximately HK$68,015,000 (2022: HK$69,952,000) 68,015,0007 7T (20224F : 69,952,000
were pledged to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to two J0) 2 T R EFE R T —BIRITIEAR
subsidiaries of the Company (Note 30(ii)). NRIET MEK B AR ERBITERZIE

R (B FES0() °

EREEEEERAR
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17

160

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17

REME

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of year RF A 113,330 76,350
Additions NE - 28,000
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation SHAFAEEE), K= (8,130) 8,980
At end of the year RELL 105,200 113,330

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligation for future repairs and maintenance (2022: Nil). At 31 March
2028 and 2022, the investment properties of the Group were pledged
to a bank to secure bank borrowings granted to a subsidiary of the
Company (Note 30(j)).

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by independent professional valuers, Roma Appraisals
Limited and Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, who hold
recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment properties
valued. The valuation determines the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. The fair value (losses)/gains
are included in “Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation of investment
properties” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The recurring fair value measurements for investment properties are
included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during either
of the years.

The Group’s finance department includes personnel who review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. The results are reported directly to the Financial Controller
(“FC”) and the Audit Committee (“AC”). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the FC, AC and the valuer at
least once every six months.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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17

18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 BEWE®E)
At each financial reporting date, the finance department verifies all RE RS BE - S &EBLEE
major inputs to the independent valuation report, assess property WMERNEHBEEH AR - BEFHER
valuations movements when compared to prior year valuation reports, EHBRUTEMEME2EE WS
and holds discussions with the independent valuer. HEMET® o
Valuation techniques fHERE
The valuation of investment properties was determined by using the BEMEZHEDEABELEE(E R
sale comparison method approach (Level 2 approach). Sales price of EBCR)ETE - MEZHH DI mEER)
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in CEERBRMEALBRYEZEE o
key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this BAEZEERBARBARETARZE
valuation approach is price per square foot. 1% o
SUBSIDIARIES 18 MEBLAHE
The following is a list of subsidiaries of the Group: T RAEEZHBARIE :
Place of Principal activities and Particulars of issued Percentage of
Name incorporation place of operation share capital interest held
=g ST A L 1th 26 TEXBEREEHY BRITRAFEE FiEERE I
2023 2022
2023F  2022%F
Directly owned:
HERER:
HKF Overseas Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding in 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Hong Kong of US$1 each
HKF Overseas Limited RERRES REBREZR 10,000 R E &
1ET LBk
HKF BVI Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding in 100 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Hong Kong US$1 each
HKF BVI Limited EBERHS REBREZR 100i G AR E (E
1ZT 2 LBk

EBEREEERAT
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea) 18 KMEATE @)

162

Place of Principal activities and Particulars of issued Percentage of
Name incorporation place of operation share capital interest held
28 AR 32 3t 36 TEXBREELHY BRITRAFE RS
2023 2022
2023F  2022%F
Indirectly owned:
MRS
Asia Ford Investment Hong Kong Property investment 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited holding in Hong Kong
BOREFRAF Bt REBMEREER 10,000/ & &R
Charterfame Investment Hong Kong Property investment 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited holding in Hong Kong
HERBERRE Bk REBYMEREBER 10,0008 & 3@ A%
Hong Kong Finance Hong Kong Money lending business of 1 share of HK$1 each 100% 100%
(Personal Loan) Limited providing personal loans
in Hong Kong
BEEEEMRAER Bt REBRBELAERZ 1REREE ST RG
BRRF MBS
Hong Kong Finance Hong Kong Inactive 1 share of HK$1 each 100% 100%
Express Limited
BEAGEREERADHE Bt Tmex 1R GREEETZ KRG
Hong Kong Finance Hong Kong Money lending business 100,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Company Limited of providing properly shares
mortgage loans in
Hong Kong
BEEGEEUBERLR £ REBREYEZIBEEH  100,000,0000% Fi@R
ZHIEES
Max Art Limited Hong Kong Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
HEER AT G Tme 10,0008 & & %
Hong Kong Promise Hong Kong Inactive 1 share of HK$1 each 100% 100%
Finance Limited
ABEFBARAR B Tmex 1REREETET2RA
Oceanic Limited Hong Kong Property investment 1 share of HK$1 each 100% 100%
holding in Hong Kong
BERRAR G REBYEREER 1R EREE ST ]G
Standard Finance Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% 100%
holding in Hong Kong
SRAEER A A G REBMEREER R EEIE TR
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

19 REHBSZEMTA

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
Financial assets at amortised cost BHERATEZEREE
Loans receivable FEWKE R 872,271 930,469
Interest receivables R B 22,903 21,776
Repossessed assets g o1& B 7,126 7,248
Deposits and other receivables e R HAEWFIE 1,504 1,254
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEEEYD 29,875 24,882
933,679 985,629
Financial asset at fair value through BATFEFABGRCCREE
profit or loss 800 800
934,479 986,429
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEERAS Rz EHEE
Other payables and accruals HAth AT 3B R FERT B A 5,984 6,198
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary i —RER RN E AR E 96,467 109,740
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R E MR 230,102 293,790
Bonds BE%H = 22,911
332,553 432,639
EBEEEEERAT
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20 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

21

20 BAVPERABEZZEMEE

LOSS
2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At beginning and end of the year RET REFLK 800 800

The financial asset is an unlisted instrument denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and is classified as a non-current asset.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

21

ERMEEDABITEZIFLTIA - I

DERERBEE -

RER-—BEERQT

Beginning of the year

Capital injection

Share of loss of a joint venture

F10
B
DIEEERR R

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET TET
14,000 -
(42) -
13,958 -

On 30 May 2022, HKF Overseas Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sales and purchase agreement to
acquire 50% of the issued share capital (the “Acquisition”) of Shine
Joyful Limited (the “Target”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, at a cash consideration of HK$14,000,000. The
principal assets of the Target comprises certain vessels. Details of the
transaction are disclosed in the announcements dated 30 May 2022

and 2 June 2022.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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21 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21 BRER-—BEEQTHE)
Set out below are the summarised financial information of the joint ATEINEERRNYBEEHNE - B
venture, which is accounted for using the equity method. FAERAANE -
Summarised balance sheet EEEBEREE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets MEVEE
Cash and cash equivalent RERRESFEY 245 -
Other current assets HAhmeEn s E 692 =
Total current assets MENEERT 937 =
Non-current assets EREBEE 26,995 =
Current liabilities mEaE (16) -
Net assets BESFE 27,916 =
Reconciliation to carrying amount: RE SN -
Group’s share in percentage AEERMNBDL 50% =
Group’s share of net asset AEEEMEETE 13,958 =
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HBRARBE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Revenue g 6,000 =
Depreciation and amortisation e REH (2,712) -
Total comprehensive loss ZHEELR (84) =
EBEEEEERAT
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22 LOANS RECEIVABLE 22 REWER

166

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT

Gross loans receivable — property mortgage EUE R4ARE - MEILB
loans B 699,639 766,074
Gross loans receivable — personal loans JEWNE @R - LAER 199,627 186,332
Total gross loans receivable JEWNE R E%E 899,266 952,406

Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE

Stage 1 F1REER (2,177) (2,867)
Stage 2 FOREER (497) (2,055)
Stage 3 B3R ER (24,321) (17,015)
Total provision for impairment BRI EBRE (26,995) (21,937)
Loans receivable, net of provision JEUE R - MR EEER 872,271 930,469
Less: non-current portion B EmEIE D (334,659) (308,660)
Current portion mEnEl s 537,612 621,809

The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying

amounts approximate their fair values.

Except for gross personal loans receivable of HK$199,627,000 (2022:
HK$186,332,000) which are unsecured, loans receivable are secured
by collaterals provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable

with fixed terms agreed with the customers.

The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure of loans receivable and
the movements on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2023 are set out in Note 3.1 (b)(vii).

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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22

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, loans receivable amounted
to HK$700,000 (2022: HK$5,996,000) had been written-off. These
relate to customers who are either (i) in financial difficulties; (i) declared
bankruptcy; or (i) deceased and in the opinion of the directors, such
loans receivable have no reasonable expectation of recovery.

A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the reporting
periods, based on the maturity date and net of provision, is as follows:

22

EWERE)
HE202343A31HILFE  BRER
700,000/8 7T (20224 : 5,996,000/8 T)
EfisE - BRERESRBEF()EAHTBHR
$EESMERE  R(NEFHMESR
RESIETEANE S EREKER -

RIBZH A REMREBR - BREFRN
RERRZZBMBERAT

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Current BN HA 537,612 621,809
2-5 years 2FE B4 87,836 80,200
Over 5 years 5% LA F 246,823 228,460
872,271 930,469

As at 31 March 2023, certain properties mortgaged to the subsidiary 20233318 » & TP F AR AIM

of the Company for loans granted to its respective customers were
sub-mortgaged to an independent third party to secure bank and
other borrowings granted (Note 30(jii)). Other than that, certain bank
and other borrowings from an independent third party were secured by
gross loans receivable of HK393,099,000 (Note 30(iv)) (2022: Nil).

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, mortgage loans receivables amounting
HK$31,372,000 are still in progress for registration of the legal charges
at the Land Registry (2022: HK$21,500,000).

BRAINAERARFESER ZMED
ERTELE=F  (ERERRITREAM
B F 2 AR (B EE30 (i) ° 9N - BB H
ZHMETRITREMERHERE R L
%8303,099,0007% Jr & 1 (Ff 5£30(iv)) (2022
F | o

MR2023%F K2022F3H31H * €% A
31,372,0005 7T (20224F : 21,500,000/8
oMW E RN L MEEf A
JETEIRRCAIPEER ©

EREEEEERAR
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24
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INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23 ERRE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Interest receivables FE U FI B 22,903 21,776
The Group’s interest receivables, which arise from the money lending REBERKHER R EBIREYELRSE
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in ERRFAERZREER - LB T
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying B MREEEEATEES -
amounts approximate their fair values.
Except for interest receivables of HK$14,832,000 (2022: B A% 14,832,000 L (20224
HK$11,316,000) which are unsecured, interest receivables are secured 11,316,000/ 7T) 2 FEURFI B A KN -
by collaterals provided by customers and repayable with fixed terms EUWF B AR PR 2R mERKME
agreed with the customers. AREEFEE B E R AERE -
As at 31 March 2023, certain bank and other borrowings from MR2023F3A31H BBIYE=ZFH
independent third party were secured by gross interest receivables of ETROREMERBERT S B
HK$16,152,000 (Note 30(iv)) (2022: Nil). 16,152,000/ 7T # 38 (M 730(iv)) (20224 -
') o
REPOSSESSED ASSETS 24 WEEE
The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 March 2023F K2022F3A31 AFTIF%EEE
2023 and 2022 are summarised as follows: ZMHEREEERMRAT

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Repossessed assets — lorry parking spaces e E1EE - B8 AEMN
(2022: lorry parking spaces) (20224 : BHEIRE) 7,126 7,248

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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24

25

REPOSSESSED ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, repossessed assets only represent
the credit-impaired loans and interest receivables which the Group has
the right to rent or sell the underlying collateral assets, but does not
obtain any ownership and control of the underlying collateral assets,
in order to recover the outstanding receivables balances. These
receivables continue to be measured at amortised cost less provision
for impairment under HKFRS 9, with reference, to a certain extent, to
the fair value of the underlying collateral assets.

No provision for impairment of repossessed assets was made as at

31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). Note 3.1(b) provides for details of how the
expected credit loss allowance is measured.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24

25

WEEE )

2023%F K 2022F3A31H - D& EE
EAREERHAK L ESRBEREEER
I SR AERE ER A R IEHE)
LA Bl R EE RN EIEA SN E EERE
FEWERRFE - BRIERBMBEREED
BTN - 5% FFE N SR IB A 4B TR BH A AN R
BEREBTE TR —TEREL2ZIEH
HIREEMQTE -

R20234°3 A31 B 3t M5t Uk B4 2R T
1R (00224 « &) - HIEE3. 1) B Ta ST
EEBAREH BIA L RS -

BANRE B2 REMERKER

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Prepayments TETFRIE 1,356 774
Deposits biera 201 235
Other receivables H th JE W R IE 1,303 1,019
2,860 2,028

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, consideration
receivable, deposits and other receivables approximate their fair values.

The Group’s prepayments, consideration receivable, deposits and
other receivables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

AEBZANA  BRRE Z2RHE
b WA 2 SR E R E AP ERE -

AEBZEMNE  BRKE B RE
ftb FE W RIR A B TTATHE -

PR 1R & K LA JE W SRR 5 2R 78 B 7 R ORR
(8

EREEEEERAR
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 HEeRBELZEY
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash at bank and maximum exposure to RITHEEEEAEERR
credit risk 29,875 24,882

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

RekASFBYABTE -

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 KX
Number of shares Share capital
RAEE R
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20224 20235 2022
'000 shares  '000 shares HK$’000 HK$'000
T T TET TEx
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRAEFOIBTZLER
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of the year RENREFR 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEGYE
At beginning and end of the year RENREFR 415,000 415,000 4,150 4,150
28 RESERVES 28 f#1E

The amount of the Group’s reserve and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 102 to these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s capital reserve represents the excess of the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s share issued in exchange therefore.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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29 OTHER PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS 29 HtENFEREGTER
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiBx FHT
Other payables and accrued charges H e RE kR X 8,670 8,316
Rental deposits received [k a 87 401
Interest payable on bonds &5 2 ERFLE - 44
8,757 8,761
The Group’s other payables and accruals are denominated in Hong AEEz Ht BT HIEREFT&AUE T
Kong dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. FHE MEEEEEQAFERS -
30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 30 MBITRHEMER
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: RITREMERSTHT -
2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Bank loans RITER 208,624 224,844
Other borrowings H a5k 21,478 68,946
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R E M B4R 230,102 293,790
Less: non-current portion B ERBIE (867) (915)
Current portion mEE D 229,235 292,875
The weighted average effective interest rate on bank loans and bank HZE2023F3A31BIEFE @ BITEF K
overdrafts during the year ended 31 March 2023 was 5.0% (2022: RITEZ 2 MEFHERFEFER5.0%
4.5%) per annum. (20224 : 4.5%) °
EREEEEERAT
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Other borrowings of HK$21,478,000 (2022: HK$68,946,000) are
unsecured and repayable within one to nine years (2022: within one
to ten years). The weighted average effective interest rate on other
borrowings during the year ended 31 March 2023 was 5.3% (2022:
4.5%) per annum.

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, all bank and other borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2023, the bank loans and overdrafts utilised by the
Group amounted to HK$208,624,000 (2022: HK$224,844,000). The
Group’s unutilised banking facilities as at the same date amounted to
HK$238,540,000 (2022: HK$192,647,000). These banking facilities
were secured by the following:

(i) investment properties held by the Group with a net book value of
to HK$105,200,000 (Note 17) (2022: HK$113,330,000);

(ii) land and buildings held by the Group with a net book value of
HK$68,015,000 (Note 16) (2022: HK$69,952,000);

(i) certain properties mortgaged to the subsidiary of the Company
for loans granted to its respective customers. The fair value of
these properties were approximately HK$104,900,000 (2022:
HK$94,500,000);

(iv)  certain gross mortgage loan receivable of HK$393,099,000 and
interest receivables of HK$16,152,000 (2022: Nil); and

(v)  corporate guarantee of the Company.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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RITREMERE)
#%21,478,000/8 7T (20224F : 68,946,000
BT 2 EMERAERERER—ENF
WEZE(2022F | —EF+FN) ° HE2023
FIAMHIEFEEMERNNEFTAE
BRI 55.3%(20224F © 4.5%) °

R20234F K 2022F3HA31H » FTARITM
EMER BT E - MEREEREAF
BERE -

2023F3A31H » AEBBEFERZRIT
BERRE Y /208,624,000 7T (20224 -
224,844,000 7T) - NEBENE R Z K E
FERTTREE A238,540,000/8 7T (20224F
192,647,000/ 7T) ° ZFRITRLE A T 51
BIEERER -

() AEEFFEmFEA105,200,000
770 (20224F 1 113,330,000/8 7T) 2
BEEMIFE17)

(i)  AEBFTHEIRE A 568,015,000/%8
TE (20224 : 69,952,000/ 7T) 2 L it
MigF(MizE1e)

i)y HTEBFAQAET —HEWE
REIEARERBREFPERER
ZHE - -ZEMEZATFEYN
/4104,900,000/% L (20224
94,500,000/ 7T) &

(v) B TFREBIZIEE 4 %E393,099,000
BT M EWF B 16,152,000 7T
(2022F : )« &

V) ARRZEHESER-
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31

32

BONDS 31 EF
2023 2022
2023 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Bonds &% = 22,911
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had balances of Bond | with a 202243 A31H - AEE A S5 NKRE
collective amount of HK$23,000,000 before placing commission, with E M A1) A 28,000,000 L 2 EH— 4
a coupon rates of 6% per annum, repayable in 7 years from the issue % EEFEEAR6% - ARFEITHERE
date and the maturity dates ranging from 31 October 2021 to 27 Z7TFENEE - BEHANF2021F10A31
August 2022. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has AZE20229F8H27H - H £2023F3A31
fully repaid the outstanding balances. AIEFE  AEBCDBHEEREENR
The carrying amount of the Bond | was HK$22,911,000 as at 31 R202243A31H ' BEF—Z2HREEA
March 2022, and approximated its fair value. The fair values are 22,911,000 T * BEAFERS - 2F
determined using the expected future payments discounted at effective BE AR FRIBITER R RAE 288
interest rates prevailing at the year ended and are within level 3 of the REMFMEE  WEBAFEERE=H
fair value hierarchy. The carrying amounts of the Group’s bonds are HERN - AEEGEHFZREAERBETE
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B -
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 EEFEH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BAEEERGIBITRE DGR AT 18 & A R
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax BVEARIE B E G AR - BREMEHS
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal REA—M %R - B IEEREHRE
authority. ERBERREE -
The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BEMBEEERBBEZAWOT
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Deferred tax assets: BEEMIEEE :
- To be recovered within 12 months - #1218 A R (1,561) (1,135)
Deferred tax liabilities: BEXERIEEE :
~To be settled after more than 12 months - ERBB12(A A B &S 3,616 3,301
Deferred tax liabilities, net BEERIEBEFE 2,055 2,166
EREEEEERAT
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

32 REFRBH(E)

EEFSTARE 2 BREFHMT

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At beginning of the year REF A 2,166 2,419
Credited to in the consolidated statement of RiFaE2EBARETA

comprehensive income (111) (253)

At end of the year REL 2,055 2,166

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

EERSHEERAERFRAZEH(RE
BR—BBEAIEERAEHREFWT

Provisions

for collective
impairment of
loans receivable

JE Uk B ph R A
B B
HK$’000
FAT
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H (869)
Credited to the consolidated statement of RERE 2EBARTA
comprehensive income (486)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R20224 38310 &
2022F 4 F1H (1,355)
Charged to the consolidated statement of RERE 2EBARINER
comprehensive income (407)
At 31 March 2023 2023F3A31H (1,762)

_I 74 Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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32

33

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 EEFERE)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the BLEFEHEENBBERFRNZEH(CRE
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within BRI —HB AR AN EEREHE) T
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
Accelerated tax
depreciation
IRFRIBHTE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2021 7202144 H18 3,288
Charged to the consolidated statement of RErE 2EBARINR
comprehensive income 233
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 M2022F3HA31H &
20224 A1H 3,521
Credited to the consolidated statement of RERE 2EBA RN
comprehensive income 296
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 3,817
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS — AS LESSOR 33 REHERE-EAHER

The Group leases out its investment properties to independent third
parties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are within 1 to 3 years (2022: within 1 to 5 years).

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of the investment properties are as follows:

AEERBEHE 2 KCEHERHZOE
VE=ZHFHAREDE - APANT1F
E3F(2022F : NFAFE5F) o

REBREMEZ AL EREY - BK
ZARRKEESEENAT :

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Within 1 year 1ER 1,340 2,082
Within 2-5 years 2E5F A 563 1,421
1,903 3,503

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment at 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).

R2023F3A31H » REBWETMERK
B AREME (20224F + £E) o

EREEEEERAR
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the

other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control or common significant influence.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried

out between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course
of business during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, and
balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 March 2023

and 2022.

(a) Significant related party transactions

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following

significant transactions were undertaken by the Group with

related parties.

BEAERS

BB BN ER ST HAYE R T
ZHMBREERRITEEATENZA
T RHAREHIARNEATEZALR
WA SE R -

T SR A £R [ B E B B 5 B = 20234F
N2022F3A3HILFEREAFEEBBRE
FETZEARRS © LARR20234F 2022
FIASIA B AR S5 -

@ EXBEBHIXRZ
BRAREHMIDAREEIN K
SEEBEBRTETZIEAR SN
o

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET Fi&T
Interest expense paid to a fellow NF¥F—RRERHBARZ
subsidiary MERX
= Tin Ching Industrial Company - RBEBEEARAR
Limited (“Tin Ching Industrial”) (TRBEZ]D 6,325 6,279
Advertising and marketing expenses NP —EEERRZESE R
paid to a joint venture =l
~ Shine Joyful Limited - DS BRAA 3,000 =

Interest expense on an amount due to a fellow subsidiary was
charged at an effective interest rate of 6.6% (2022: 5.8%) per

annum.

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

Tin Ching Industrial, a fellow subsidiary, provided the Group
with a loan facility with a limit of HK$200,000,000 (2022:
HK$200,000,000), of which the Group utilised an amount of
HK$96,467,000 (2022: HK$109,740,000) as at 31 March 2023.

The amount was unsecured, interest bearing at an effective
interest rate of 6.6% (2022: 5.8%) per annum on the outstanding
amount, and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
amount due to a fellow subsidiary is denominated in Hong Kong

34 BBMAIXZ(E)

(b)

B —REERME D RRIE
REAMBARXSEEAANEER
HEFRRE - BRE /200,000,000
77T (20224 200,000,000/ 7T)
ANEBMR2023FE3A31HEEHA
HA196,467,000/8 7L (20224
109,740,000 7T) °

RRERBERE  KRBFEBRER
FFIEB.6%(20224F : 5.8%):T B &
BIRBEREE - BN —HERRNE
ARFIEZ REENASTTEHE -

dollars.
Key management compensation (c) XEEEEFM
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Salaries and bonuses e RIEA 9,674 8,752
Other benefits HEEF 1,260 1,260
Pension costs- defined contribution RIS KA - FEHKETE
plans 98 92
11,032 10,104
EAEHENARAT
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(@)

178

Statement of financial position

35

AT MBMRR T
(@ MBI E

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHT
Assets BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z%E 260,850 260,850
Totalnon-currentassets FroEES®H 260850 260,850
Current assets REEE
Amount due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR [B) B A B3k IR 324,260 266,854
Prepayments, deposits, and other TEFIE - ke REAEYK
receivables RIE 43 -
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEZEY 196 =
e N ARRERE L 8ae] i
Total assets EESE 585,349 527,704
Equity =
Equity attributable to the owners of ARATEE AELER
the Company
Share capital [N 4,150 4,150
Reserves i 382,270 376,146
Total equity SRR 386,420 380,296
Liabilities 8E&
Current liabilities REBAE
Bonds &5 = 22,911
Trade and other payables B 5 & KA pER 5RIE - 84
Tax payable FEIBETE 344 97
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A R ZRIA 198,585 123,995
Bank overdrafts RITEX = 321
Total current liabilities FEBEEAEE 198,929 147,408
Total liabilities BEHAE 198,929 147,408
Total equity and liabilities ERREEHEE 585,349 527,704
Net current assets RBEEFH 125,570 119,446
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBESE 386,420 380,296

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company

35 ARQTAHBMRRRE)

(b) AQRREELEH

Share-based

Share capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
AR5
By
R1ARE ERfEE REEA @t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THEx TR TR
Balance at 1 April 2021 W2021F4R 18 2 &8 103,665 260,829 7,266 371,760
Total comprehensive income FEZHKALR
for the year - - 15,176 15,176
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Dividends relating to 2021 BHE021E2RE - = (5,395) (5,395)
Dividends relating to 2022 BHE202F 2R E - = (5,395) (5,395)
Balance at 31 March 2022 #20223A31 A 28 103665 260,829 11652 376,146
Representing b
Reserves & 103,665 260,829 6,257 370,751
Proposed final dividend BERERE - - 5,395 5,395
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2022F3A31A 2 &8 103,665 260,829 11,652 376,146
Balance at 1 April 2022 R2022F4A1A 2 &8 103,665 260,829 11,652 376,146
Total comprehensive income FEZEKALE
for the year - - 16,914 16,914
Transactions with owners BEFTAZRS
Dividends relating to 2022 BHE2022F 7R 8 - = (5,395) (5,395)
Dividends relating to 2023 HRI2023F 2R B - = (5,395) (5,395)
Balance at 31 March 2023 W2023F3A 310 2 &8k 103,665 260,829 17,776 382,270
Representing b
Reserves f#E 103,665 260,829 12,381 376,875
Proposed final dividend BEASRE = = 5,395 5,395
Balance at 31 March 2023 #20233A31A 28 103665 260,829 17,776 382270
The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the KRB 2 ERFEERARRDRRD
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the WA AR TETF’% EEEENE
Company pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the ZWBARIEEFE L X FEBH
listing of the Company’s share, over the nominal value of the ANRARBETNBRE D 2 EE
Company’s share issued in exchange therefore. L EEE -
Under Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may RERSHEARE  AaAIRE

make distributions to its shareholders out of the capital reserves

in certain circumstances.

THERT BEARFERREBRRER

DK °

EREEEEERAR
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REMET &

As at 31 March 2023 7202393 A31H

Property Use
mE Rz

Remaining
lease terms

BR T

Percentage of
interest attributable
to our Company
AARELEZE DL

1. Unit No. 2 on 7th Floor Godown
Sunray Industrial Centre B
No. 610 Cha Kwo Ling Road
Kowloon
BE
RIREEIEG105K
AR TEAL
THE2E

2. Flat E on 10/F of Residential
Block 3 (Orchid Court) *=
New Town Plaza (Phase Ill)

Nos. 2-8 Sha Tin Centre Street
Shatin

New Territories

Fr

W H

YWHIEE2-8 57
T % (55 = BR)
SEE(ERE)

10BE=E

3 Unit No. 6A on 25th Floor Office
Tower Two, Lippo Centre WARE
No. 89 Queensway
Hong Kong
e
®iE B8O
NEHR P
25186A=E

4, Shop Units A, B1 and B2 on the Ground Floor, Shops
Lot No. 136413 in Demarcation District 6, =0
Tai Po, New Territories
AKX 65 HER
1364135k HE EA « B1 &B25R 5

Sk First Floor, Residential
Lot No. 136413 in Demarcation District 6, x=®
Tai Po, New Territories
AR L 2L 65 HER
13641355 — 12

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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Medium term

&

Medium term

h H

Medium term

h H

Medium term

5

Medium term

5

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
h o B 2

RESULTS E¥ 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

20234 20224 20214 20204 20194

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$ 000

FET FET FHT FET FHIT

Revenue Uz 160,974 153,488 155,503 163,614 160,992
Profit and total comprehensive RRBEE AEG
income for the year attributable to ~ FEE % F| &2 HE

owners of the Company N L 58,885 70,550 73,218 55,495 42,164

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

20234 20224 20214 20204 20194

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE000  HK$000

FHET THET T THET FHEIT

Total assets BEETE 1,126,206 1,177,075 1,101,991 1,178,320 1,144,796

Total liabilities BB 341,491 440,455 425,131 563,888 575,069

Total equity IR AERE 784,715 736,620 676,860 614,432 569,727

EREEEEERAR
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GLOSSARY
A 52

In this annual report, unless or otherwise further expressed, the following R ARFERRK » frXERBWMATIEIN © TH A=

expressions have the following meanings: BEBFUTRE

“AGM” the forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company to be held on

[ERBEFRE] Tuesday, 5 September 2023 at 4:00 p.m. or any adjournment thereof
RARIEHR2023F9A5H (BH ) TH4ARF IEBIT 2 IRFIBFE RS HE
gg

“Articles” or “Articles of Association” the amended and restated articles of association of our Company adopted on

[4HA k[ 4BE = R2 40 A 6 September 2022, and as amended from time to time

TR2022F 9 A6 A RN ENHER] 2 AR BE T M EH AL ETZME

“Board” the board of Directors

3 e

“CG Code” the “Corporate Governance Code” and “Corporate Governance Report” are
[EERTA set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ETRRAM SR+ A 2 KR RERTRD) M(EEEARE)

“Code Provisions” the code provisions as set out under the CG Code

Slirydl EBERTAIME Z SFAHRX

“Company” or “our Company” Hong Kong Finance Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
NS EAR VNS Islands with limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange
ERCEREERLR  —HRASHESTMKIZBARAR - ERGH O

REFFER T
“Controlling Shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
22 AR AR 2R B FiR AR TORE
“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company
= RRRIESE
“ESG” Environmental, Social and Governance
(B - HeRESE R -HegkEn

» o« » o«

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our” or “us” the Company and its subsidiaries

[ E s A& B sk AR A R EE AR
“HKS” Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
&7t BREEEE, BT

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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“HK Finance”
ES R

“HKICPA”
(BB AE]

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Listing Rules”
[ LR A

“Memorandum” or
“Memorandum of Association”

[R# X EEEREAM

“MLO”
[ & AN

“Model Code”
[tEZ4E=F Al

“SFO”
[R5 KRR

“Share(s)”

MR 15 ]

“Share Option Scheme”
[HE Ak fE st &l

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P

Hong Kong Finance Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability with a money lenders licence registered under MLO, which
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BERCEEMBERLR  —HREBIMKIZERLA  HERBEREA
GBI 2 EARR - TAARRIHE2EMEB QA

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BRGNS

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
hE ARAMBEFBEFRTTHR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B prag s AR A

the memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to
time
EAFHERT 2 AR RIEBER KM

the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BREEDIFE163 ECREBEAER]) - TSR] ~ A= 5 SR

“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAMSE TR ETETAZEFETESRRXHZEESTAD

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEBEDIEET EGEFRBEERM)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RRAARARFREE.ONA T ERAR

a share option scheme adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then
sole shareholder of our Company on 4 September 2013
R2013FIOH4RBBARBZRME— KRR 2 EEARERN 2 BAREE

the holder(s) of Share(s)
LSAESTZEDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMAERZAAERAT

EREEEEERAR
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“Tin Ching Holdings” Tin Ching Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

BN Islands, owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Chan Koung Nam and Mr. Chan
Kwong Yin William, and a controlling shareholder of our Company
ReERBBAR  —HREBEXFHSHMKY 2 AR - BARAEELEER
PRABRESHEASONERZ + WAKRRF ZIERRR

“Tin Ching Industrial” Tin Ching Industrial Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong

(KRB ] and owned as to 100% interest by Tin Ching Holdings

R BXBRAR  —HARBEEMKILZAE - AREIERES100%#

Bk

Hong Kong Finance Group Limited
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